
City Council Workshop Agenda 
August 14, 2018 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 

 
 

City Council Workshop Agenda 
Tuesday, August 14, 2018 - 4:00 p.m. 

Smith Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
 
2. Hold a work session on solid waste collection and recycling. 

 
 
3. Adjourn. 
 













































































ORDINANCE NO. 2016 .. 15 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AN EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO WASTE MANAGEMENT 
OF TEXAS, INC., TO INCLUDE PROVIDING RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION, DISPOSAL AND RECYCLING SERVICES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES 
OF BELL COUNTY MUNCIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1. 

WHEREAS, Section 7 .03 of the Development Agreement and Consent to Creation 
of Bell County Municipal Utility District No. 1 (the "District") requires any provider of solid 
waste collection services to obtain a franchise from the City of Belton (the "City"); 

WHEREAS, Waste Management of Texas, Inc., a partnership (the "Company"), 
operates a solid waste and collection service for the City of Belton; and 

WHEREAS, the Company seeks to provide solid waste collection disposal and 
recycling services for residential customers within Bell County Municipal Utility District No. 1 
(the "District"); 

WHEREAS, the City has entered into an interlocal agreement with the District to 
provide solid waste collection disposal and recycling services for residential customers; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BEL TON, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: Agreement. 

The City of Belton hereby amends an exclusive franchise to Waste 
Management of Texas, Inc., in accordance with the First Amended Solid Waste Collection 
and Transportation Agreement attached hereto as Attachment "A" to include the 
boundaries of the Bell County Municipal Utility District No. 1. 

SECTION 2: Acceptance by Company. 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this amended Franchise, the 
Company shall execute the First Amendment to the Municipal Solid Waste Collection and 
Transportation Agreement. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading, the 22nd day of March, 2016. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on second and final reading, the 1ih day of April, 2016. 



ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

JOnMeSser, City Attorney 

2 



ATTACHMENT A 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
AND TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT 

This "FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
AND TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT (this "Amendment") is entered into as of the IZ"' day 
of Apri I , 2016, by and between the CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS ("City"), and WASTE 
MANAGEMENT OF TEXAS, INC. ("Contractor"), a Texas corporation. 

WI T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor have heretofore entered into a certain Municipal Solid 
Waste Collection and Transportation Agreement, dated September 10, 2013 (together with all 
amendments thereto, the "Contract"), whereby Contractor was granted the exclusive right to provide 
residential and commercial-hand collect waste and recycling collection within the City, as more 
particularly set forth in the Contract; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to extend Contractor's services to Residential Units that 
currently receive waste services administered and/or provided by the Three Creeks Municipal Utility 
District a/k/a Bell County Municipal Utility District No.1 ("Three Creeks MUD"), and Contractor 
has agreed to expand its services to those Residential Units, 

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor desire to modify the Contract, as more particularly set 
forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged and confessed, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. The City has requested and Contractor has agreed to begin providing waste and recycling 
services to Residential Units located in the Three Creeks MUD area, including the additional 36.55 
acre tract, beginning on April 18, 2016. Attached as Exhibit A to this Amendment is a map that 
generally depicts the Three Creeks MUD area in which the Contractor will be providing the services. 
The Contractor and the City agree that Contractor will be the exclusive residential waste and 
recycling services provider in the Three Creeks MUD upon execution of this Amendment. 

2. All other provisions of the Contract are applicable to this Amendment, including without 
limitation, all provisions of Section 10 in the Contract. 

4. Capital words used in this Amendment shall have the meaning assigned in the Agreement or 
in this Amendment. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to amend or modify the Contract, 
except as expressly set forth herein. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Contract and 
this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall control. 

3 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed as of the date first set forth 
above. 

CITY: CONTRACTOR: 

BELTON, TEXAS WASTE MANAGEMENT OF TEXAS, INC. 

By: __ ~ __ v{-_;fe._~_i(_· _· _ By: 7M~~., 
Sam A. Listi 

Its: ____ C_i_ty~M_an_a __ g_er ___ _ 

4 



5 



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-45 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FEE SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF BEL TON FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018. 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton has entered into a Municipal Solid Waste Collection and 
Transportation Agreement granting Waste Management exclusive rights to operate and maintain 
the service of collection and transportation of residential and commercial hand-collect garbage 
and trash and recycl ing, over, upon, along and across the present and future streets, alleys, 
bridges, and public properties of the City. 

WHEREAS, Section 11.01 of that Municipal Solid Waste Collection and Transportation 
Agreement allows Waste Management to adjust rates for collection beginning January 1, 2015 
and continuing annually by the same percentage as the Consumer Price Index, US City Average 
for All Urban Consumers, Garbage and Trash Collection, Not Seasonally Adjusted , Base Period 
December 1983 = 100 for the preceding twelve months based on the most recently available 
index prior to the 60 days' notice to the City. 

WHEREAS, on November 3, 2017, Waste Management notified the City that rates would 
be adjusted upwards by 2.11% as of January 1, 2018 based on the September 2016 -
September 2017 adjustment in the Consumer Price Index, US City Average for All Urban 
Consumers, Garbage and Trash Collection, Not Seasonally Adjusted , Base Period December 
1983 = 100. 

WHEREAS, on November 21 , 2017, the City Council approved a small cell wireless 
facility siting ordinance that included a service pole collocations attachment agreement license, 
an agreement between the City and network provider that states a facility can be attached to 
City-owned infrastructure. 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1004 allows cities to charge a fee for the use of City right-of-way 
and City-owned infrastructure. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, Texas, 
that Section 8-71 and Section 8-72 of the Fiscal Year 2018 Fee and Rate Schedule effective 
October 1, 2017, be amended effective January 1, 2018, and Section 20-153 be added effective 
January 1, 2018, as follows: 

Sec. 8-71: 
Solid Waste Collection Current Rates Janua~ 11 2018 Rates 

Rates - Residential 
Curbside $15.49 per month $15.82 per month 
Curbside Additional $5. 77 per month per $5.89 per month per additional 
Container additional container container 
Door-to-Truck Service $26.88 per month $27.45 per month 
Door-to-Truck Service $10.50 per month additional $10.72 per month additional 
Additional Container container container 
Residential Recycling $5.25 per month additional $5.36 per month additional 
Service Additional container container 
Container 



Sec. 8-72: 
Solid Waste Collection Current Rates Pro~osed Janua!:Y 11 2018 
Rates - Commercial Rates 
Once per week service $26.24 per cart $26.79 per cart 

Commercial Cart $15.75 per additional cart $16.08 per additional cart 
Collection Additional Cart 
Commercial Recycling $8.40 per month $8.58 per month 
Cart 
Institutional Recycling $8 .40 per month $8.58 per month 

Sec. 20-153: 
Ci -owned Infrastructure and ROW Fee 

Network Nodes 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 28th day of November, 2017. 

Sik!~ 
ATTEST: 

2 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 14, 2018 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 14, 2018 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Assistant 
City Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Mayor Marion 
Grayson. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Bryan Davis of First Responders Fellowship. 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 
 

3. Consider the minutes of the July 24, 2018, City Council Meeting. 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
4. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 5-year lease agreement with 

Higher Ground Properties, LLC, for the lease of 8.024 acres. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 14, 2018 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

5. Consider a resolution supporting roadway and trail project submissions for the 
Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO) 2045 Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan.   

 
Miscellaneous 
 
6. Consider an ordinance amending the boundary of Tax Increment Reinvestment 

Zone #1, established by Ordinance 2004-64 and amended by Ordinance 2017-11, in 
two areas: 

 
A. adding approximately 156.85 acres in the vicinity of Heritage Park, east of the 

intersection of North Main Street and E. 22nd Avenue; and 
 

B. adding approximately 7.86 acres in the vicinity of the Historic Standpipe Site, 
west of the intersection of South Main Street and W. Avenue I. 

 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute the following contracts: 
 

A. A concrete contract for the annual construction materials for infrastructure 
projects for one year, and any change orders associated with the contract, not to 
exceed the amount authorized under state law; and 

 
B. A concrete contract for repair of the Lake Road sidewalks for one year, and any 

change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount authorized 
under state law. 

 
Budget FY2019 
 
8. Presentation and discussion on the Ad Valorem Tax Rate and the Sales Tax 

Allocation. 
 

9. Presentation of Belton Economic Development Corporation Annual Report and 
Budget for FY2019. 
 

10. Presentation of Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Fund Budget for FY2019. 
 

11. Presentation of the General Fund budget for FY2019. 
 
12. Presentation of the Debt Service Fund budget for FY2019. 
 
13. Presentation of proposed FY2019 Ad Valorem Tax Rate. 
 
14. Conduct vote by the City Council to place a proposal to adopt a tax rate for Fiscal 

Year 2019 on the Tuesday, September 18, 2018, agenda.  
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 14, 2018 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

15. Call for two public hearings on a proposed tax rate for Fiscal Year 2019 to be held 
on Tuesday, August 28, 2018, and Tuesday, September 11, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. at 
the Harris Community Center, 401 N. Alexander Street. 

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 14, 2018 

Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 14, 2018 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Assistant 
City Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Mayor Marion 
Grayson. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Bryan Davis of First Responders Fellowship. 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 
 

3. Consider the minutes of the July 24, 2018, City Council Meeting.  
 

A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 14, 2018 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 

Planning and Zoning 
 
4. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 5-year lease agreement 

with Higher Ground Properties, LLC, for the lease of 8.024 acres. 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. Recommend 
authorization of the 5-year lease agreement as presented. 

 
5. Consider a resolution supporting roadway and trail project submissions for 

the Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO) 2045 
Metropolitan Transportation Plan.   

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. Recommend adoption of 
the resolution supporting the City’s project submissions to KTMPO. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
6. Consider an ordinance amending the boundary of Tax Increment 

Reinvestment Zone #1, established by Ordinance 2004-64 and amended by 
Ordinance 2017-11, in two areas: 

 
A. adding approximately 156.85 acres in the vicinity of Heritage Park, east of 

the intersection of North Main Street and E. 22nd Avenue; and 
 

B. adding approximately 7.86 acres in the vicinity of the Historic Standpipe 
Site, west of the intersection of South Main Street and W. Avenue I. 

 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend adoption of the 
ordinance expanding the TIRZ boundary as presented. Following favorable Council 
action on this item, the expansion will be presented to the County Commissioners 
Court for approval. 

 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute the following contracts: 
 

A. A concrete contract for the annual construction materials for infrastructure 
projects for one year, and any change orders associated with the contract, 
not to exceed the amount authorized under state law; and 

 
B. A concrete contract for repair of the Lake Road sidewalks for one year, and 

any change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount 
authorized under state law. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Public Works Angellia Points. Recommend 
authorizing the two contracts as presented. 
 

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 14, 2018 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 

Budget FY2019 
 
8. Presentation and discussion on the Ad Valorem Tax Rate and the Sales Tax 

Allocation. 
 

Information on this item will be provided prior to the meeting. Staff is anticipating the 
receipt of additional information that will allow the Council to receive the most up-to-
date budget information. No Council action is required. 
 

9. Presentation of Belton Economic Development Corporation Annual Report 
and Budget for FY2019. 

 
Information on the budget portion of this item will be provided prior to the meeting as 
Staff is anticipating the receipt of additional information that will allow the Council to 
receive the most up-to-date budget information. The BEDC Annual Report 
presentation will be provided at the meeting. No Council action is required. 

 
10. Presentation of Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Fund Budget for 

FY2019. 
 

See the TIRZ Fund Budget presentation for FY2019. The TIRZ Board met on July 
25, 2018, and unanimously recommended the FY2019 TIRZ Fund budget as 
presented. No Council action is required. 

 
11. Presentation of the General Fund budget for FY2019. 
 

Information on this item will be provided prior to the meeting. Staff is anticipating the 
receipt of additional information that will allow the Council to receive the most up-to-
date budget information. No Council action is required. 
 

12. Presentation of the Debt Service Fund budget for FY2019. 
 

The presentation for the Debt Service Fund Budget for FY2019 is included in the 
packet. No Council action is required. 

 
13. Presentation of proposed FY2019 Ad Valorem Tax Rate. 
 

The presentation of the proposed FY2019 Ad Valorem Tax Rate included in the 
packet. No Council action is required. 
 

14. Conduct vote by the City Council to place a proposal to adopt a tax rate for 
Fiscal Year 2019 on the Tuesday, September 18, 2018, agenda.  

 
This is the first step in adopting a tax rate that exceeds the lower of the effective or 
rollback rates. After this recorded vote, the City must call for and conduct two public 
hearings, and publish a quarter-page notice in the newspaper per Texas Tax Code 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 14, 2018 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 

140. This notice is placed with two different newspapers to ensure notice is 
published as required. The notice is also posted on the City’s website. After those 
actions, Council will vote to adopt a tax rate, at their Special Called Meeting on 
September 18, 2018. A roll call vote is required by State Law. Recommend 
conducting vote to place a proposal to adopt a specific tax rate on the September 
18, 2018, Special Called Meeting Agenda. 

 
15. Call for two public hearings on a proposed tax rate for Fiscal Year 2019 to be 

held on Tuesday, August 28, 2018, and Tuesday, September 11, 2018, at 5:30 
p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 N. Alexander Street. 

 
Staff is recommending that the Council set Tuesday, August 28, 2018, and Tuesday, 
September 11, 2018, at 5:30 p.m., for the two public hearings required on the 
proposed tax rate. Recommend setting public hearings as indicated.   

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tem Craig Pearson and Councilmembers David K. Leigh, Dan Kirkley, Guy 
O’Banion, John R. Holmes, Sr. and Wayne Carpenter. Staff present included Sam Listi, 
John Messer, Amy Casey, Brandon Bozon, Chris Brown, Matt Bates, Paul Romer, Bob 
van Til, Bruce Pritchard, Kim Kroll, Judy Garrett, Angellia Points, Charlotte Walker, 
Cheryl Maxwell, Cynthia Hernandez, Susan Allamon, Jen Wesley, Larry Berg and Kelly 
Trietsch. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Grants and Special Projects 
Coordinator Bob van Til, the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by 
Councilmember Wayne Carpenter, and the Invocation was given by Bruce Lovesmith, a 
member of the Belton Clergy-Police Partnership. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Marion Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m.  
 
2. Public Comments. John Manuel, 2930 Presidio Circle, spoke on the potential 

adverse impact the Lake-to-Lake Road may have on his neighborhood, and 
recommended the project be reviewed. 

 
3. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 
 

A. July 10, 2018, City Council Workshop Meeting 
B. July 10, 2018, City Council Meeting 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember David K. Leigh, and a second by John R. Holmes, 
Sr., the minutes were unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 

  
Planning and Zoning 
 
4. Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance amending Section 23, 

Commercial Highway Zoning District to allow a truck stop and truck parking 
lot as permitted uses.   

 
Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell explained that one of the items on this agenda 
is a zone change request to Commercial Highway District to allow truck fueling and 
parking. Truck Parking Lot and Truck Stop are defined in the Zoning Ordinance, but 
they are not listed under any of the zoning districts as permitted uses, neither by 
right nor by Specific Use Permit. She said that after review of the definitions in the 
Zoning Ordinance, it can be inferred that the fueling of heavy load truck vehicles is 
allowed in the following Zoning Districts: 
 
• Retail (Gasoline or Service Station) 
• Central Business District (Gasoline Service Station) 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 2 
 

  

• Commercial Highway (any use allowed in Retail) 
• Commercial-1 (any use allowed in Retail) 
• Commercial-2 (any use allowed in Commercial-1) 

 
Mrs. Maxwell said a Commercial Auto Parking Lot/Garage is allowed in the C-2 
District, and it may be inferred that the truck parking is an accessory use to the truck 
fueling and allowed in the same zoning districts identified above for truck fueling 
which would then include Retail, CBD, CH, and C-1. Staff proposes to clarify which 
districts allow a truck stop and truck parking by amending the Zoning Ordinance to 
allow the use.  
 
“Truck Stop and Truck Parking Lot are both uses related to interstate traffic,” Mrs. 
Maxwell said. Therefore, the Commercial Highway Zoning District appears to be 
appropriate for these uses. If approved for the Commercial Highway Zoning District, 
these uses would also be allowed in Commercial-1 and Commercial-2 Zoning 
Districts. She added that Staff is not proposing to add these uses to the Retail 
District, although, if Retail Zoning is along an interstate, they may be appropriate, 
and could be allowed based on the current definitions. 
 
Mrs. Maxwell said the Planning and Zoning Commission met on July 17, 2018 and 
unanimously recommended approval of the proposed amendment to Section 23, 
Commercial Highway Zoning District, to allow a truck stop and truck parking lot as 
permitted uses, and Staff concurs with their recommendation.  
 
Councilmember Holmes asked if the Truck Parking Lot meant overnight parking. 
Mrs. Maxwell said, “Not necessarily.” She added that the length of time allowed for 
parking in the lot is not addressed. 
 
Mayor Grayson opened the public hearing on this item. Seeing no one wishing to 
speak, she closed the public hearing. 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Guy O’Banion, and a second by Councilmember 
Wayne Carpenter, Item #4, including the following captioned ordinance, was 
unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 

 
ORDINANCE 2018-22 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE BY AMENDING SECTION 23, COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY DISTRICT, 
TO ALLOW A TRUCK STOP AND TRUCK PARKING LOT AS PERMITTED 
USES; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

5. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to 
Commercial Highway District on a 3.283 acre tract of land located at 3555 W. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 3 
 

  

Hwy 190 Service Road, on the southeast corner of I-14/US 190 and FM 1670, 
west of I-35.  
 
Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell explained that this property is under contract, 
and the proposed purchaser is the applicant. The applicant proposes to develop a 
larger convenience store to accommodate fueling and parking of large trucks. The 
proposed Commercial Highway Zoning District allows these types of uses. She 
added that while alcohol sales is an allowed use under the proposed zoning, this 
area is currently “dry” for alcohol sales. 

 
Mrs. Maxwell said that the Zoning Ordinance is not clear regarding these uses. She 
added that the approval of the code amendment in Item #4 clarifies that the 
applicant’s proposed uses are allowed in the requested Commercial Highway Zoning 
District. She added that approval of a subdivision plat and site plan will be required 
prior to issuing a building permit. Development of this property must comply with all 
design standards for site development including building design, landscape, tree 
preservation, etc. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on July 17, 2018, and unanimously 
recommended approval of the zoning change from Agricultural to Commercial 
Highway District, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 

 
Mayor Grayson opened the public hearing on this item. Seeing no one wishing to 
speak, she closed the public hearing. 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Leigh, and a second by Councilmember 
O’Banion, Item #5, including the following captioned ordinance, was unanimously 
approved by a vote of 7-0. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2018-23 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTURAL 
TO COMMERICAL HIGHWAY ZONING DISTRICT ON A 3.283 ACRE TRACT, 
WITH DEVELOPMENT TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 4 DESIGN 
STANDARDS. 

 
6. Consider a final plat of Hollow Ranch Subdivision, comprising 34.535 acres on 

the east side of FM 1670, south of West Amity Road in the ETJ of the City of 
Belton. 

 
Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell said this is a 49-lot subdivision with 47 lots 
proposed for single family residential development and two lots proposed for 
commercial development along FM 1670. The preliminary plat was approved in 
February, under the name of Taylor Subdivision. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 4 
 

  

Mrs. Maxwell explained that this property is located in Belton’s ETJ, so there is no 
zoning. The Future Land Use Map shows this area as residential, and there are 
currently several residential developments in this area. Access to the residential lots 
is provided off FM 1670 via the proposed road Hollow Drive. Local streets connect 
with Hollow Drive creating a loop within the development. All of the proposed 
residential lots are over 0.50 acre in size, and the two commercial lots are both 
approximately 2.5 acres in size. 
 
Following is a summary of the subdivision ordinance requirements as they apply to 
this subdivision plat. 
 
Water: This property is located within the Salado Water Supply Corporation (SWSC) 
CCN. An existing 6-inch water line runs along the west side of FM 1670 and an 8” 
line runs along the east side. The applicant proposes to tap the 8” line and construct 
an 8-inch line throughout the subdivision. A letter has been provided from SWSC 
confirming their ability and willingness to serve this subdivision. The City of Belton 
Fire Code requires a minimum water flow of 1,000 gpm for fire hydrants. The 
existing water pressure is 900 gpm. The developer requested a variance to this 
requirement with the preliminary plat, and it was approved by Council at that time.  
 
Sewer: No sanitary sewer is available to serve this subdivision. Individual septic 
systems are proposed on the lots. All of the proposed lots are over 0.50 acres in 
size. A letter has been provided from the Bell County Public Health District 
tentatively granting approval for septic systems, subject to site plan reviews for the 
individual lots. 
 
Drainage: Drainage will be detained on-site in the vicinity of Block 1, Lot 14 at the 
northeast corner of this property and will be maintained by the subdivision’s home 
owners’ association. Detailed drainage calculations have been provided, and 
drainage plans are ready for approval. 
 
Streets: With 120’ of ROW available, no ROW dedication is needed for FM 1670. FM 
1670 is a TxDOT roadway; therefore, the requirement for perimeter street 
improvements is not applicable. TxDOT approval is required for driveway permits to 
the commercial lots from FM 1670. TxDOT has approved access for the entrance 
roadway, Hollow Drive, and the southern commercial lot (Lot 1, Block 3); however, 
access to the northern commercial lot (Lot 1, Block 1) was not granted. Access to 
this lot will be via Hollow Drive. The internal roads in this subdivision will be 
constructed as local streets with a 31’ pavement width within a 50’ wide ROW with 
curb and gutter.  
 
Sidewalks: The Subdivision Ordinance requires the developer to construct and 
install a 6-foot wide sidewalk along the subdivision side of arterial roadways. Since 
FM 1670 is a minor arterial, the developer is required to install a 6-foot wide 
sidewalk along the eastern side of FM 1670. The applicant requested a variance to 
this requirement with the preliminary plat, and it was denied in conjunction with 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 5 
 

  

preliminary plat approval. The sidewalk has been included in the proposed 
construction plans. 
 
Parkland Dedication/Fees: This subdivision is proposed to contain 47 residential 
lots; therefore, a dedication of 0.47 acres of parkland or a $9,400 fee-in-lieu of land 
dedication is required. The lots in this subdivision are 0.50 acre and larger, which 
provides open space on each lot for the residents. This subdivision is located 
outside the Belton City limits and is not close to any existing City parks. The Parks 
Master Plan does not identify any future parkland in this area. The developer 
requested a variance to the parkland requirements with the preliminary plat, and the 
variance was granted.  
 
Mrs. Maxwell said that Staff has reviewed the final plat and finds it acceptable, 
subject to conditions contained in the letter to the applicant. Since this proposed 
subdivision is located in Belton’s ETJ, the Bell County Engineer’s Office has also 
reviewed this plat and made comments that have been addressed. After Council 
action, this plat will be taken to Bell County Commissioners Court for approval.   
 
At the Planning Commission meeting on July 17, 2018, Staff informed the members 
they were working with the applicant regarding placement of driveways with access 
to Hollow Drive for the two commercial lots. The proposal is to locate each driveway 
125’ from the west property line.  
 
Staff also informed the members that their recommendation for the sidewalk along 
FM 1670 was being withdrawn, due to maintenance issues. Neither Bell County nor 
TxDOT is willing to maintain the sidewalk in the ETJ, and the City cannot justify 
spending tax dollars generated by residents inside the city limits on sidewalks 
located outside the City limits where the residents do not pay City taxes. 
 
Councilmember Leigh asked, “Although the sidewalk is not going to be built at this 
time, can we request the developer design the sidewalk so we will be able to 
construct it at the appropriate time?” City Manager Sam Listi said that TxDOT has 
stated sidewalk design would not be appropriate at this time since future design of 
roadway improvements are unknown. Mr. Leigh said that he does not agree with 
TxDOT and still believes it should be designed. Mr. Listi said that he understands, 
but the City is having a challenge with areas like this in the ETJ. 
 
Councilmember O’Banion asked if there is enough ROW for a sidewalk. David 
Mojica of Belton Engineering, the applicant’s engineer, stated that the original plans 
show a sidewalk, and there is room within the TxDOT ROW. Mr. Leigh said that he 
thinks the plans should continue to show the sidewalk even if it is not required to be 
constructed at this time, thereby demonstrating it is possible. 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Leigh to approve the final plat as presented but 
require the sidewalk to be shown on the plans as originally intended, and a second 
by Mayor Pro Tem Craig Pearson, Item #6 was approved by a vote of 6-1. 
Councilmember Holmes provided the dissenting vote. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 6 
 

  

 
Miscellaneous 
 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services 

agreement with Halff Associates for the redesign of the South Belton Sewer 
System Phase II. 

 
Director of Public Works Angellia Points explained that Council previously decided to 
reevaluate the design of Phase II of the South Belton Sewer Project in order to allow 
additional areas to be served by gravity sewer east of Toll Bridge Road.  
 
Mrs. Points said that on June 12, 2018, two options were presented to the Council in 
a workshop session. Option A included keeping the lift station along Toll Bridge 
Road, with the assumption a second lift station would be needed in the future along 
the Lampasas River. A second bore under IH-35 would also be needed to serve an 
additional area west of IH-35 and south of Shanklin Road to the Lampasas River. 
This second bore is consistent with both Option A and Option B. The ultimate cost 
for both lift stations and second bore was estimated to be $6.12M.  
 
Option B included relocating the lift station to the Lampasas River to maximize the 
service area now and to only have one lift station for the region. In order to do so, 
additional easements would need to be acquired, and additional gravity and force 
mains would need to be installed. The ultimate cost for Option B ($4.14M) and the 
second bore under IH-35 was estimated to be $4.54M and is overall less expensive. 
Although Option B would require additional easement acquisition, additional time for 
design, and additional funding (construction and design services) at this time, 
Council decided to proceed with Option B. Option B results in only one lift station for 
the region, maximizes the service area sooner than later, and overall is less 
expensive for the ultimate system.  
 
Mrs. Points said Staff worked with Halff Associates to develop a scope of services to 
redesign Phase II for Option B. The scope of services includes the following items. 
 
• Predesign to include horizontal and profile pipeline alignments and preliminary 

site location of the lift station, which is proposed to be located on the Utley 
property.  

• Survey and subsurface utility engineering for locating utilities.  
• SCADA path study to determine antenna height.  
• TCEQ permitting. 
• TxDOT permitting services for the extension of the sewer line to Cedar Crest.  
• Environmental permitting.  
• Geotechnical investigations.  
• 30%, 60%, 95%, and final design phases, each with cost estimates and 

necessary reviews. 
• Easement legal descriptions and exhibit preparations.  



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 7 
 

  

• Bid phase services. Construction phase services will be negotiated at the time of 
bid award. 

• This scope does not include the second bore under IH-35. This is considered  
another future phase of the sewer project.  

 
Mrs. Points added that there are some economies of scale with the Phase II 
redesign because the project includes the lines north of the original lift station 
property, which have already been designed. However, because more service 
acreage is included, the force main size will need to be increased. The gravity main 
north of Toll Bridge will be extended to Cedar Crest along IH-35. The scope includes 
designing 5,900 linear feet of new gravity line and 4,000 linear feet of new force 
main. Phase II will include moving the lift station, which can keep most of the original 
design. However, she said that it will require some changes due to the location, 
increase in size, the configuration and reworking how it will be powered by electrical, 
etc. An access road/point to the facility will also need to be designed. Finally, the 
design will need final TCEQ approval.  
 
Points explained that the work on the first redesign proposal has halted, leaving 
approximately $75,000. The revised Phase II design scope of services is 10% of the 
estimated construction costs at $419,700 with provisions to add easement legal 
descriptions if needed. The proposed contract is for $419,700, but net new cost 
given the $75,000 remaining from the halted project is approximately $345,000. She 
said that the funding for the redesign is proposed to come from the 2016 Utility 
Certificates of Obligation.  

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Carpenter, and a second by Councilmember Dan 
Kirkley, Item #7 was unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 

 
8. Consider authorizing the purchase of an ambulance through the BuyBoard 

Cooperative Purchasing Network from Frazer, Ltd., via Mac Haik Dodge 
Chrysler Jeep in the amount of $125,775 to be funded through the Greathouse 
Trust Fund. 

 
Fire Chief Bruce Pritchard said that the Fire Department needs a modern and 
reliable fleet in order to continue to serve the citizens of Belton. The City currently 
has three ambulances, and the unit that they are requesting be remounted has just 
over 100,000 miles on it. 
 
Current fleet: 
 
• Medic 1 2016 - 53,000 miles 
• Medic 2 2015 - 97,000 miles 
• Medic 3 2006 - 111,000 miles 
  
Fire Department personnel received a BuyBoard quote of $125,775 from Frazer for 
the remount. Purchases through BuyBoard meet all competitive bidding 
requirements. Texas law requires purchases of vehicles from licensed vehicle 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 8 
 

  

dealers, so payment will be made to Mac Haik for the chassis and upfitting of the 
ambulance body. Mac Haik will deliver the chassis to Frazer who will complete the 
unit. The unit is expected to be complete by April 2019.   
 
The Greathouse Trust was established to help the Fire Department with EMS needs. 
Chief Pritchard explained that this fund has helped fund the remounting of two 
ambulances and the purchase of a third ambulance. The current balance in the 
Greathouse Trust is approximately $134,000.  
 
The Greathouse Fund Trustees met prior to this meeting and authorized the funding. 
The refurbishing and chassis purchase will be repaid from the General Fund in four 
annual installments. The first year payment from the General Fund to the 
Greathouse Trust Fund will be included in the FY 2019 budget. 
 
Councilmember O’Banion asked what a complete ambulance would cost. Chief 
Pritchard responded that a new unit would cost between $320-$350K depending on 
optional equipment. 
 
Mayor Grayson explained that Mrs. Greathouse had used Belton EMS while she 
was living, and she left instructions in her will to provide a sum of money to the City 
to utilize for ambulances and EMS needs. 
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Pearson, and a second by Councilmember 
Kirkley, Item #8 was unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 
 

9. Consider an ordinance amending Chapter 2, Article II, Section 2-26 of the Code 
of Ordinances regarding the membership requirements for the Lena 
Armstrong Public Library Board of Directors. 

 
A motion was made to table this item by Councilmember Leigh. The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Holmes, and Item #7 was tabled by a vote of 7-0. 
 

10. Consider appointments/reappointments to the following Boards and 
Commissions: 

 
A. Library Board of Directors 
B. Housing Board of Adjustment 
C. Planning and Zoning Commission 

 
Mayor Grayson announced that Item #10A needed to be tabled. She asked if there 
were any questions on this item. There were none. 

 
A motion to table Item #10A and approve Items #10B and #10C was made by Mayor 
Pro Tem Pearson. Councilmember Leigh seconded the motion which was 
unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. Councilmember Holmes said that he had 
worked with Rae Schmuck on the Planning and Zoning Commission, and he 
thanked her for her service. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 9 
 

  

11. Consider an ordinance amending the following: 
 
A. FY2018 BEDC budget. 

 
BEDC Executive Director Cynthia Hernandez said that in August 2017, BEDC 
created their capital fund with $4.1 million dollars for planned infrastructure 
improvements. The allocation was based on estimates for the Avenue D 
extension, Rockwool site enhancements, cost share in the proposed East Street 
improvements, and the IH-35 water line extension. Due to some modifications 
with the Avenue D design and IH-35 services, and requests made by the City of 
Belton for support with various road projects, a budget amendment in the amount 
of $1,694,500 is needed.  
 
Mrs. Hernandez explained that a contract for design services for the I-35 water 
extension has been approved. Services related to engineering are estimated at 
$94,500 over the original projected costs for engineering services and are 
included in the budget amendment. She said the Avenue D design is near 
completion with a target date of August for bids. Construction costs are expected 
to exceed the original estimates due to some minor enhancements required by 
TxDOT at the intersection of Loop 121 and Avenue D. The budget amendment 
includes a 15% increase for construction costs, bringing the total project to 
$2,478,100 for engineering and construction. She added that this project will help 
facilitate a safe alternative for traffic to enter and exit the Belton Business Park. 
Furthermore, this investment will open several tracts for commercial and light 
industrial development.  
 
Currently, the tracts south of IH-14 and west of Loop 121 towards FM 1670 are 
not served with sewer. Mrs. Hernandez said that BEDC will allocate $220,000 to 
design wastewater extension to serve a notable area south of IH-14.  
 
Hernandez said the remaining funds included in the proposed budget 
amendment are in response to the City of Belton’s request for funding assistance 
with two additional projects. BEDC will allocate $848,340 for the Loop 121 
widening project. This amount reflects the total costs due to TxDOT for the City’s 
cost share in the project. BEDC will also allocate an additional $250,000 to fund 
the East Street improvements in full, estimated at $350,000. 
 
BEDC Board of Directors unanimously voted to approve the budget amendment 
in the amount of $1,694,500 at the July 12, 2018, Board meeting.  
 
Mayor Grayson and Councilmember Leigh thanked Mrs. Hernandez for the 
information. Mr. Leigh added that he appreciates the BEDC Board partnering 
with the City on many of these projects. Councilmember Dan Kirkley commented, 
“Wow!” 

 
B. FY2018 General Fund and Debt Service Fund budgets. 

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 10 
 

  

Director of Finance Brandon Bozon explained that the 2005 City Charter states 
that budget amendments occur by ordinance. The enclosed ordinance includes 
all known budget amendments to date for FY 2018. Some of these were 
approved by City Council as they arose during the year, and the need for other 
amendments occurs in the course of operations during the year. Amendments 
not yet approved by Council include: 
 
• An increase in refuse collection fee revenue and an increase in refuse 

collection contract expenditures of $50,000 to adjust revenues closer to actual 
and cover the additional refuse contract expenditures due to greater than 
anticipated customer growth.  

• An increase in the General Fund expenditure, ‘Transfer to Debt Service Fund’ 
and Debt Service Fund revenue, ‘Transfer from General Fund’ of $200,000 to 
assist in the continued implementation of the City’s tax rate management 
strategy in FY 2019. 

• An increase in the General Fund expenditure, ‘Fire Department HVAC 
Maintenance’, of $50,000 to cover unplanned expenditures incurred during 
the year. 

• An increase in the General Fund expenditure, ‘Transfer to Street Maintenance 
Fund’ of $150,000 to provide additional funding for the City’s ongoing 
preventative street maintenance plan. 

• An increase in the BEDC Operating Fund expenditure, ‘Transfer to BEDC 
Capital Projects’ of $1,694,500 to provide funding/additional funding for the 
Avenue D extension, East Street Improvements, IH-35 waterline extension, 
Loop 121 widening cost share and IH-14 sewer line engineering. (See Staff 
Report for Item 11A for more detailed information.) 

 
Other amendments previously approved, and included in this ordinance are: 
 
• The increase in BEDC Operating Fund expenditure, ‘Land’ of $43,000 to 

cover the acquisition of property adjacent to the Belton Business Park 
 
Councilmember Leigh asked if the rollback rate was affected by amending the 
budget during the year. He added that, although the City isn’t changing the total 
ad valorem tax rate, we are adjusting the allocations between Maintenance/ 
Operations (M&O) and Debt Service.  
 
Mr. Bozon stated, “Just having surplus revenues in sales tax will not affect the 
roll back rate. However, as the City heads down this path of utilizing debt service 
fund balance to work our tax rate to maintain the same top line by decreasing the 
debt service, it will pull next year’s rollback rate down from 0.6970 to 0.6722, so 
we are saying we need less debt service taxes to service our debt. We are on a 
path toward lowering our rollback rate for next year, but it will still be above our 
current tax rate. Just having additional revenue streams doesn’t impact that.”  
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 11 
 

  

Mr. Leigh asked, “When we look at rollback rates, do they affect the debt service 
rate, or just primarily the M&O rate? If there was a cap from the State in the 
future years to say we are going to cap… you can only go up 10%, it’s not 10% 
overall, is it?”  
 
Mr. Bozon said the cap will affect only the M&O rate. He added, “Through this we 
are increasing our M&O and decreasing our debt service, but that is the rate 
(M&O) that has been targeted in the past by the Legislature to cap. The reason 
our top line roll back would be changing is due to us lowering our debt service 
rate. Our M&O rollback rate cannot change because it’s done with a calculation, 
and the debt service rate is added to that.  
 
Mr. Leigh said, “So effectively the State Legislature sees debt service as more of 
local control issue, while they see M&O as more of a State controlled issue.”  
 
Mr. Bozon said, “Another way to look at it is debt service is a legal obligation of a 
government entity.” Mr. Leigh added, “Unless the State wants to take over the 
legal obligation to pay our debt, they aren’t going to touch that rate.”  
 
Councilmember Holmes said, “That’s the reason I’m a little hesitant to do the 
$200,000 adjustment to the debt service fund. I think we are committing 
ourselves to the tax rate before we have approved the budget. I’m also hesitant 
to continue to buy down the debt service.”  
 
Mr. Leigh said, “In my personal opinion, as long as the top line is the top line, the 
more we can have flexibility under our control without having to anticipate what 
the State Legislature may or may not do, I think it is a good way to manage the 
tax rates by not increasing the taxes. It is just allowing us to have more margin 
under our control.” Mr. Holmes responded, “I somewhat agree, but debt service 
is debt service, and to add funds to that account from the General Fund, I’m a 
little hesitant.” Mayor Grayson asked Mr. Holmes why he was hesitant. Mr. 
Holmes responded, “The debt service fund already has a $90,000 surplus, so we 
are already collecting more taxes for our debt service than we need, and we are 
going to add $200,000 to that?” Mr. Leigh said, “It is a way to manage the debt 
service tax rate and the maintenance and operation tax rate if we anticipate that 
we will have to shift up in the future.” Mayor Grayson said, “Anticipating what the 
Legislature is going to do in January is one that always gets us. We don’t want to 
get in a pickle.” Mr. Holmes asked, “So you don’t think the Legislature is going to 
let us adjust funds over the debt service account anymore?” Mr. Leigh 
responded, “No. We just think moving to the 0.565 rate from the 0.554 rate is 
going to give the City more margin for collection in the future for future projects 
that can only be funded by the M&O rate. We are just trying, over time since we 
have been fairly conservative, to shift more of our ad valorem tax rate into 
maintenance and operations, and less from debt service. It’s just a shift.”  
 
Councilmember Wayne Carpenter asked Mr. Bozon to explain the rollback rate. 
Mr. Bozon said the rollback rate is a calculation that adds 8% to the City’s 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 12 
 

  

effective maintenance and operation rate, and that is the highest the City can go 
on the M&O tax rate. The top line M&O roll back number is that number plus 
whatever you say you need to levy that year for debt service. The reason our top 
line rollback is coming down is not because our M&O rollback is coming down, 
but because we are saying we need less funding for debt service with the idea 
that we are shifting… keeping our same top line tax rate and putting more toward 
M&O.” 
 
Councilmember O’Banion said, “we’ve proven that we don’t need as much for 
debt service because we have a surplus in debt service.” Mr. Bozon said, 
“Surplus is a balance sheet number. The $90,000 was $170,000 last year, so in 
this particular year, we have a deficit in debt service because of a similar plan to 
utilize our fund balance. So we are not going to collect another $90,000 over 
what we’ve projected.” Mr. O’Banion asked, “Didn’t you say the net rollback rate 
will actually decrease after it is all said and done, so really what we are saying is 
we can’t even increase, we are limiting our ability to increase, the tax rate at the 
same time. So as a citizen, I could view that as we are saying we are lowering 
the amount, the threshold that we could raise taxes if we wanted to.” Mr. Bozon 
said, “Yes. We are lowering our ceiling which is what your rollback rate 
essentially functions as… from around $0.69 to around $0.67.” Mr. O’Banion 
said, “I think that is what Mr. Holmes meant about making decisions on tax rate 
before there is a budget, but we are basically committing that we do not foresee 
needing to go to the rollback rate.” Mr. Bozon said, “It is a very valid concern. It is 
an unfortunate timing issue of when we got our certified tax roll to when we have 
to propose a maximum tax rate, and have those rollback calculations finalized 
that we didn’t have two meetings fall in that window. We got the certified roll last 
week, and the next meeting will be when the Council sets the maximum 
proposed tax rate. We are limiting ourselves beyond the 0.6722 number “ 
 
Councilmember Leigh said the good news is the City has excess revenues on 
things that are not property taxes. He added that it is a good metric for underlying 
economic performance of a city. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Leigh, and a second by Mayor Pro Tem 
Pearson, Items #11A and #11B, including the following captioned ordinance, 
were unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. Councilmember Holmes asked that 
the record reflect that he voted in favor of the budget amendment, but he still has 
a little concern about the $200,000. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-24 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017, AND 
ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018. 

 
12. Consider a resolution approving the Advanced Funding Agreement with the 

Texas Department of Transportation for the Loop 121 Widening Project. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 13 
 

  

City Manager Sam Listi explained that the City has worked with TxDOT to 
emphasize the priority of widening Loop 121 due to existing and anticipated growth. 
As discussed at a Council Work Session on April 24, 2018, TxDOT is preparing to 
initiate final design, ROW acquisition, and utility relocation plans for the Loop 121 
Widening Project, between FM 439 (Lake Road) and IH-35. The total project cost 
estimate is $33 million, with right-of-way and utility relocation costs amounting to an 
estimated $8,483,385. Belton is responsible for 10% of this amount, totaling 
$848,338.50, and TxDOT has provided an Advanced Funding Agreement to be 
executed and accompanied by the City’s cost share. 
 
Mr. Listi said that approval of the Agreement by the City will trigger the next 
important step by TxDOT to keep the project moving in an orderly manner. Providing 
our cost share reflects the City’s commitment to the project, and will fix the City’s 
cost share at this amount even if ROW costs exceed this estimate. The final TxDOT 
public hearing on the project is tentatively scheduled for August 30, 2018 and, 
following final design, ROW acquisition, and utility relocation, construction could 
begin in 2021/2022. 
 
Funding has been provided by the Belton Economic Development Corporation 
based on a budget amendment approved by Council in Item #11A. Additionally, Listi 
explained that a 14” City water line is located within the Loop 121 ROW, which the 
City will be 100% responsible for its relocation as may be needed for project 
construction. The actual impact of this line, and the need for its relocation, will not be 
known until the development of 30% Loop 121 construction plans by TxDOT. 
 
Councilmember Holmes asked if the bike lane will be located in the road. Mr. Listi 
responded that it will be adjacent to the roadway in the right-of-way. 
 
Mr. Listi expressed appreciation to BEDC for their partnership on this project. Mayor 
Grayson echoed the Council’s appreciation. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Kirkley, and a second by Councilmember 
O’Banion, Item #12, including the following captioned resolution, was unanimously 
approved by a vote of 7-0. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-18-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT 
WITH THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR THE 
WIDENING OF STATE LOOP 121 FROM FM 439 TO INTERSTATE 
HIGHWAY 35 

 
Budget FY2019 
 
13. Receive presentations on the proposed Hotel-Motel Fund budget for FY 2019. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 14 
 

  

Director of Finance Brandon Bozon reviewed changes in the Hotel/Motel Fund in 
FY2018. He then presented the proposed FY2019 Hotel/Motel budget, and said the 
beginning fund balance is projected to be approximately $149,952. He reviewed 
revenues, indicating that they are projected to remain flat in FY2019.  
 
Councilmember Holmes asked if the funds were still given to the Belton Area 
Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Bozon explained that prior to January 2017, the hotel-
motel funds were given to the Chamber to manage these funds. The Chamber went 
through some reorganization, and the City now manages the funds for tourism. 
Additionally, Judy Garrett, CVB/Retail Coordinator, transitioned to a City position at 
that time.  
 
Mr. Bozon discussed anticipated expenditures, and said that the proposed budget of 
$173,474 shows an increase from FY2018.  
 
Judy Garrett, CVB/Retail Coordinator, reviewed the acceptable uses for hotel/motel 
funds (Exhibit “A”). She also discussed the mission, accomplishments and goals for 
the Tourism/Retail Development Department. 
 
Mayor Grayson congratulated Ms. Garrett stating that the inaugural events held this 
year were successful, especially the Belton Bacon, Brews and Blues Festival. 
 
No action was required by the Council on this item. 
 

14. Receive presentations from the following City departments concerning their 
mission, annual accomplishments and goals: 

 
A. Fire 

 
Fire Chief Bruce Pritchard presented the mission, accomplishments and goals for 
the Belton Fire Department (Exhibit “B”). 

 
Mayor Grayson asked about the purpose of the rehab trailer. Chief Pritchard 
explained that the trailer is used at fire scenes when it is determined that a 
firefighter needs to rehab from working the fire. The Mayor expressed 
appreciation to the Fire Corps for their hard work and dedication to the Fire 
Department. 

 
B. Planning and Inspections 

 
Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell presented the mission, accomplishments 
and goals for the Planning Department including Building Inspections and GIS 
(Exhibit “C”). Councilmember Leigh asked if the City and BellCAD are able to 
share data for mapping. Mrs. Maxwell said that she would need to ask the GIS 
Technician if that could be done. 

 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – Page 15 
 

  

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:12 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



H
ot

el
-M

ot
el

FY
 2

01
9 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

acasey
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A"



FY
 2

01
8 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n

- H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

 F
un

d 
-

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

$9
8,

76
3

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 R

ev
en

ue
s

$1
75

,5
20

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s:

($
12

4,
33

1)

N
et

 Im
pa

ct
 o

f P
ro

po
se

d 
B

ud
ge

t
$5

1,
18

9

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
$1

49
,9

52



FY
 2

01
9 

Pr
op

os
ed

- H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

 F
un

d 
-

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

$1
49

,9
52

P
ro

po
se

d 
R

ev
en

ue
s

$1
75

,5
33

P
ro

po
se

d 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s:

($
17

3,
47

4)

N
et

 Im
pa

ct
 o

f P
ro

po
se

d 
B

ud
ge

t
$2

,0
59

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
$1

52
,0

11



R
ev

en
ue

s 
an

d 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s

FY
 2

01
7

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Ac
tu

al
B

ud
ge

t
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
op

os
ed

Am
ou

nt
%

C
ha

m
be

r
38

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
Pe

rs
on

ne
l

19
,0

51
$ 

   
   

   
27

,5
55

$ 
   

   
   

27
,5

55
$ 

   
   

   
28

,9
77

$ 
   

   
   

1,
42

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

5.
16

%
Su

pp
lie

s
2,

42
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

26
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
47

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
47

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(7

94
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-6
2.

57
%

R
ep

ai
rs

 &
 M

ai
nt

38
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
%

Se
rv

ic
es

7,
77

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

73
,2

37
$ 

   
   

   
42

,0
26

$ 
   

   
   

58
,2

47
$ 

   
   

   
(1

4,
99

0)
$ 

   
   

  
-2

0.
47

%
Sp

on
so

rs
hi

ps
22

,0
95

$ 
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
30

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

57
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
14

.0
0%

Be
ll C

ou
nt

y 
Ex

po
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

%
C

ity
 S

up
po

rt
3,

52
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

%
Tr

an
sf

er
s

64
,2

94
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
$1

60
,0

55
16

5,
83

6
$ 

   
   

 
12

4,
33

1
$ 

   
   

 
17

3,
47

4
$ 

   
   

 
7,

63
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
4.

61
%

C
ha

ng
e 

fro
m

 2
01

8 
B

ud
ge

t

FY
 2

01
7

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Ac
tu

al
B

ud
ge

t
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
op

os
ed

Am
ou

nt
%

H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

 T
ax

es
15

9,
50

0
$ 

   
   

 
16

4,
70

6
$ 

   
   

 
16

4,
70

6
$ 

   
   

 
16

4,
70

6
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

%
P

rio
r Y

ea
r R

ef
un

d
15

,2
06

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
C

ou
nt

y 
H

ot
el

/M
ot

el
 T

ax
8,

19
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

48
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e

46
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
32

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
32

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

82
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

16
5.

40
%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
18

3,
35

8
$ 

   
   

 
17

4,
70

6
$ 

   
   

 
17

5,
52

0
$ 

   
   

 
17

5,
53

3
$ 

   
   

 
82

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
0.

47
%

C
ha

ng
e 

fro
m

 2
01

8 
B

ud
ge

t



U
se

 o
f L

oc
al

 H
ot

el
 O

cc
up

an
cy

 T
ax

Te
xa

s 
Ta

x 
C

od
e 

Ti
tle

 3
 –

Su
bt

itl
e 

D
 –

C
ha

pt
er

 3
51

C
rit

er
ia

 #
1:

  E
ve

ry
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 m

us
t D

IR
EC

TL
Y 

en
ha

nc
e 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

to
ur

is
m

 A
N

D
 

th
e 

co
nv

en
tio

n 
an

d 
ho

te
l i

nd
us

try
.

C
rit

er
ia

 #
2:

  E
ve

ry
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 h
ot

el
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 ta
x 

m
us

t c
le

ar
ly

 fi
t i

nt
o 

on
e 

of
 

th
e 

9 
st

at
ut

or
ily

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

fo
r e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l h
ot

el
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 ta
x 

re
ve

nu
es

.
1.

Fu
nd

in
g 

th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t, 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t, 
or

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f a

 c
on

ve
nt

io
n 

ce
nt

er
 o

r 
vi

si
to

r c
en

te
r.

2.
Pa

yi
ng

 th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
co

st
s 

fo
r f

ac
ilit

at
in

g 
co

nv
en

tio
n 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n.

3.
Pa

yi
ng

 fo
r a

dv
er

tis
in

g,
 s

ol
ic

ita
tio

ns
, a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
io

ns
 th

at
 a

ttr
ac

t t
ou

ris
ts

 a
nd

 c
on

ve
nt

io
n 

de
le

ga
te

s 
to

 th
e 

ci
ty

 o
r i

ts
 v

ic
in

ity
.

4.
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s 
th

at
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

ar
ts

.
5.

Fu
nd

in
g 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 re

st
or

at
io

n 
or

 p
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s.

6.
Fu

nd
in

g 
ce

rta
in

 e
xp

en
se

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l e

xp
en

se
s,

 d
ire

ct
ly

 re
la

te
d 

to
 a

 s
po

rti
ng

 
ev

en
t, 

w
ith

in
 c

ou
nt

ie
s 

w
ith

 a
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 u
nd

er
 1

 m
illi

on
.

7.
Fu

nd
in

g 
th

e 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
r u

pg
ra

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

sp
or

ts
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

or
 s

po
rts

 fi
el

ds
 fo

r 
ce

rta
in

 m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
.

8.
Fu

nd
in

g 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
sy

st
em

s 
fo

r t
ou

ris
ts

.
9.

Si
gn

ag
e 

di
re

ct
in

g 
to

ur
is

ts
 to

 s
ig

ht
s 

an
d 

at
tra

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 v

is
ite

d 
fre

qu
en

tly
 b

y 
ho

te
l 

gu
es

ts
 in

 th
e 

ci
ty

.



To
ur

is
m

 M
an

ag
er

/R
et

ai
l C

oo
rd

in
at

or
M

is
si

on
: P

ro
m

ot
e 

To
ur

is
m

 &
 R

et
ai

l/C
om

m
er

ci
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
C

ity
 o

f B
el

to
n

FY
 2

01
8 

Ac
co

m
pl

is
hm

en
ts


H

os
te

d 
in

au
gu

ra
l B

ac
on

 a
nd

 B
lu

es
 F

es
tiv

al


Pr
ov

id
ed

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 e

ve
nt

s 
th

at
 b

ro
ug

ht
 to

ur
is

ts
 to

 
Be

lto
n


M

ot
he

r E
ar

th
 N

ew
s


Be

ll 
C

ou
nt

y 
Ke

nn
el

 C
lu

b


Am
er

ic
an

 P
oo

l C
ue

 T
ou

rn
am

en
t


4t

h
of

 J
ul

y 
R

od
eo

 a
nd

 P
ar

ad
e


Be

ll 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

om
ic

 C
on

 



To
ur

is
m

 M
an

ag
er

/R
et

ai
l C

oo
rd

in
at

or

FY
 2

01
9 

G
oa

ls


Ex
pa

nd
 B

ac
on

 a
nd

 B
lu

es
 F

es
tiv

al


C

on
tin

ue
 to

 L
ia

is
on

 w
ith

 D
es

tin
at

io
n 

C
en

tra
l 

Te
xa

s,
 B

el
l C

ou
nt

y 
Ex

po
 C

en
te

r, 
U

M
H

B


H

os
t s

ite
 to

ur
s 

fo
r p

ro
sp

ec
tiv

e 
ne

w
 h

ot
el

ie
rs

 


C

on
tin

ue
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

ev
en

ts
 th

at
 b

rin
g 

pe
op

le
 to

 
Be

lto
n!



acasey
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "B"



20
18

 A
cc

om
pl

ish
m

en
ts

Fi
re

Fi
re

•
Fi

re
 C

hi
ef

’s
 A

nn
ua

l C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
t f

or
 B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
es

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n
•

In
iti

at
ed

 th
e 

ne
w

 F
ire

ho
us

e 
So

ftw
ar

e
•

C
on

du
ct

ed
 jo

in
t L

ad
de

r O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

w
ith

 T
em

pl
e 

Fi
re

 &
 R

es
cu

e 
•

C
om

pl
et

ed
 a

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t N

ee
ds

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t r
ep

or
t f

or
 C

M
•

A
FC

 G
ilb

re
at

h 
gr

ad
ua

te
d 

 h
is

 2
-y

ea
r T

ex
as

 F
ire

 
C

hi
ef

 A
ca

de
m

y

•
Fi

re
 C

or
p

•
W

al
m

ar
t $

2K
 R

eh
ab

 T
ra

ile
r E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
(r

ec
ei

ve
d)

•
A

FG
 G

ra
nt

 $
24

K
 S

m
ok

e 
de

te
ct

or
s, 

fir
e 

st
op

s
•

R
eh

ab
 tr

ai
le

r &
 F

D
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e

•
Im

pl
em

en
te

d 
Fi

re
 C

or
ps

 a
ut

o 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fir
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 e

m
er

ge
nc

ie
s

•
C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 S

af
et

y:
  $

+3
0,

00
0

•
Vo

lu
nt

ee
r h

ou
rs

:  
+3

,0
00

 h
ou

rs
•

W
ill

 c
on

du
ct

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 la

rg
es

t F
ire

 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

s i
n 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t’s

 
H

is
to

ry
 (J

ul
y 

28
th

)



20
19

 G
oa

ls
Fi

re
A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

•
R

es
ea

rc
h 

di
ffe

re
nt

 a
ve

nu
es

 to
 re

cr
ui

t n
ew

 fi
re

fig
ht

er
s

•
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 o
ffe

r F
ire

 C
or

ps
 c

la
ss

es
 &

 fi
nd

 g
ra

nt
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s

Su
pp

re
ss

io
n

•
Im

pr
ov

ed
/m

ai
nt

ai
n 

qu
al

ity
 tr

ai
ni

ng
•

B
eg

in
 su

cc
es

si
on

 p
ro

gr
am

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 O

ffi
ce

r D
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ra

in
in

g 
fo

r “
St

ep
 U

p”
 o

ffi
ce

rs
•

C
er

tif
y 

2 
fir

e 
in

sp
ec

to
rs

 a
nd

 1
 fi

re
 in

ve
st

ig
at

or

Pr
ev

en
tio

n
•

C
on

tin
ue

 th
e 

sm
ok

e 
de

te
ct

or
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
•

En
ro

ll 
A

FC
 in

 b
as

ic
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
ou

rs
es

•
C

on
du

ct
 3

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t e

xe
rc

is
es

 
•

C
on

du
ct

 a
 “

M
oc

k”
 d

ril
l d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
10

0t
h 

an
ni

ve
rs

ar
y 

Ju
ly

 p
ar

ad
e 



20
19

 G
oa

ls
EM

S

•E
nr

ol
l f

ire
fig

ht
er

s i
n 

Pa
ra

m
ed

ic
 S

ch
oo

l a
s n

ee
de

d
•C

on
tin

ue
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ad

va
nc

ed
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

•R
e-

ch
as

si
s a

m
bu

la
nc

e



Fu
tu

re
 C

ha
lle

ng
es

Fi
re

•
C

on
tin

ue
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 C

M
 to

 p
re

pa
re

 F
D

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 g

ro
w

th

•
St

af
fin

g 
an

d 
st

at
io

n 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
gr

ow
th

 
•

Pr
ep

ar
at

io
ns

 to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

a 
re

sc
ue

 tr
uc

k 
in

 
20

19
/2

02
0.

•
Pr

ep
ar

at
io

ns
 to

 re
pl

ac
e 

 Q
2 

in
 2

02
4.

  
In

iti
al

 b
ui

ld
 p

ro
ce

ss
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 in
 2

02
2

•
Fi

nd
 c

re
at

iv
e 

w
ay

s t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 re
te

nt
io

n 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 tu
rn

ov
er

EM
S

•
Eq

ui
pp

in
g 

am
bu

la
nc

es
 w

ith
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

pa
tie

nt
 lo

ad
in

g 
sy

st
em

s
•

B
ud

ge
tin

g 
fo

r i
nc

re
as

ed
 a

m
bu

la
nc

e 
co

st
s 

an
d 

re
m

ou
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

s
•

A
dj

us
t t

o 
th

e 
co

un
ty

 E
M

S 
tra

ns
iti

on
 in

 
91

1 
se

rv
ic

e
•

D
es

ig
ni

ng
 re

vi
se

d 
EM

S 
re

sp
on

se
 m

ap
s t

o 
ad

ju
st

 to
 th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 c

ou
nt

y 
re

sp
on

se
 

ar
ea

s



O
h 

Sn
ap

!  
Al

m
os

t f
or

go
t t

hi
s 

ac
co

m
pl

ish
m

en
t…



Q
ue

st
io

ns
?




G

IS


Bu

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

ti
on

s


Pl

an
ni

ng

acasey
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "C"



GI
S

M
is

si
on

:  
To

 e
ffi

ci
en

tly
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
pr

ov
id

e 
ge

os
pa

tia
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 to
 

al
l C

ity
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

nh
an

ce
 C

ity
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

, i
m

pr
ov

e 
de

ci
si

on
 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

be
tte

r p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

A
cc

om
pl

is
hm

en
ts

:


O
bt

ai
ne

d 
20

17
/2

01
8 

ae
ria

l i
m

ag
er

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

SE
C

 (C
om

m
is

si
on

 o
n 

St
at

e 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

).


D
ev

el
op

ed
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

H
is

to
ry

 o
nl

in
e 

m
ap

.


D
ev

el
op

ed
 c

us
to

m
 d

at
a 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
w

eb
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r C
od

e 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t O
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 

co
lle

ct
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

fie
ld

.


C
re

at
ed

 n
ew

 R
ec

yc
le

, G
ar

ba
ge

 a
nd

 B
ru

sh
 m

ap
s 

fo
r q

ui
ck

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

lo
ok

up
.


R

ev
is

ed
 a

nd
 re

pr
od

uc
ed

 M
ille

r S
pr

in
gs

 T
ra

il 
M

ap
 w

ith
 h

el
p 

fro
m

 P
ar

ks
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t.

G
oa

ls


U
pd

at
e 

zo
ni

ng
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
to

 o
ur

 A
rc

G
IS

 O
nl

in
e 

m
ap

s 
du

e 
to

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 w

eb
si

te
.


C

re
at

e 
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e 
W

al
ki

ng
 T

ou
r m

ap
, M

ille
r S

pr
in

gs
 m

ap
, a

nd
 P

ar
ks

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
m

ap


C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

t. 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 F

ire
 H

yd
ra

nt
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

la
n.


C

re
at

e 
an

 a
dd

re
ss

 lo
ok

up
 to

ol
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t o
n 

ou
r w

eb
si

te
 o

r A
rc

G
IS

 O
nl

in
e 

m
ap

s.


In
te

gr
at

e 
su

bd
iv

is
io

n 
pl

at
s 

in
to

 G
IS

.



Bu
ild

in
g 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
M

is
si

on
:  

Ad
m

in
is

te
r t

he
 C

ity
’s

 b
ui

ld
in

g,
 p

lu
m

bi
ng

, e
le

ct
ric

al
, m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l, 
en

er
gy

 c
od

es
, 

an
d 

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f s
af

e 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
nd

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

.

A
cc

om
pl

is
hm

en
ts

:


Pr
es

en
te

d 
th

e 
20

15
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

es
 a

nd
  2

01
4 

El
ec

tri
ca

l C
od

e 
to

 C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r a

do
pt

io
n.


En

ha
nc

ed
 th

e 
Bu

ild
in

g 
an

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 w
eb

pa
ge

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 li
st

 o
f g

ui
de

lin
es

—
fe

nc
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, s
to

ra
ge

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, g

ar
ag

es
/c

ar
po

rts
, s

w
im

m
in

g 
po

ol
s.


R

eb
ui

ld
in

g 
th

e 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t s

ta
ff.


C

om
pl

et
ed

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

fo
r p

lu
m

bi
ng

 a
nd

 c
od

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t p
er

so
nn

el
.  

G
oa

ls


Im
pl

em
en

t n
ew

ly
 a

do
pt

ed
 2

01
5 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

od
es

 a
nd

 2
01

4 
El

ec
tri

ca
l 

C
od

e.


C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 G
IS

 to
 s

ca
n 

an
d 

di
gi

tiz
e 

al
l c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
flo

od
pl

ai
n 

pe
rm

its
.


Pr

ov
id

e 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r B
ui

ld
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r.



Pl
an

ni
ng

M
is

si
on

:  
To

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 a

nd
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
y 

en
ha

nc
in

g 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 C

ity
's

 n
at

ur
al

 a
nd

 b
ui

lt 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 p
la

n,
 z

on
in

g 
an

d 
su

bd
iv

is
io

n 
or

di
na

nc
es

, a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

st
an

da
rd

s/
gu

id
el

in
es

. 

A
cc

om
pl

is
hm

en
ts

:


H
is

to
ric

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
:  

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 C
er

tif
ie

d 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t s
ta

tu
s


R

ep
re

se
nt

ed
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f B
el

to
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
KT

M
PO

, p
ro

vi
di

ng
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

in
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ith
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

Tx
D

O
T


D

ev
el

op
ed

 Z
on

in
g 

U
se

 T
ab

le
s 

to
 s

um
m

ar
iz

e 
w

he
re

 v
ar

io
us

 u
se

s 
ar

e 
al

lo
w

ed


C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 w
ith

 T
ax

 A
pp

ra
is

al
 D

is
tri

ct
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 m

on
ito

r n
on

-a
nn

ex
at

io
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

gr
ee

m
en

ts

W
or

k 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s:


Pe
rfo

rm
 s

un
se

t r
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

id
ew

al
k 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
pe

rim
et

er
 s

tre
et

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts


Es

ta
bl

is
h 

hi
st

or
ic

 la
nd

m
ar

ks


C
re

at
e 

do
cu

m
en

t p
ro

vi
di

ng
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 in

 B
el

to
n

U
pc

om
in

g 
C

od
e 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
:


Po

lic
y 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
Sh

ar
ed

 A
cc

es
s 


R

V 
Pa

rk
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds


Fo

od
 T

ru
ck

/H
an

dl
er

s 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 


R
es

id
en

tia
l u

se
s 

in
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tri

ct
s 


D

is
tri

ct
 fo

r D
om

es
tic

 A
bu

se
 V

ic
tim

s


Si
gn

 O
rd

in
an

ce



Pl
an

ni
ng

G
oa

ls


Im
pl

em
en

t r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

Jo
in

t L
an

d 
U

se
 S

tu
dy

 (J
LU

S)
.


C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 K

TM
PO

 a
nd

 T
xD

O
T

on
 L

oo
p 

12
1 

w
id

en
in

g 
an

d 
ot

he
r t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

an
d 

tra
il 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.


M
ai

nt
ai

n 
up

da
te

d 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
la

n 
in

ve
nt

or
y.


Pr

ov
id

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
“o

ne
 s

to
p 

sh
op

”.



In
te

re
st

in
g 

Fa
ct

s &
 R

ec
en

t T
re

nd
s


Po

pu
la

tio
n

Gr
ow

th


Ja
n

1,
20

17
:

21
,2

14


Ja
n

1,
20

18
:

21
,7

21


Si
ng

le
Fa

m
ily

Bu
ild

in
g

Pe
rm

its


20
17

–
12

7
pe

rm
its


20

18
(to

da
te

)–
56

pe
rm

its


Tw
o

Fa
m

ily
Pe

rm
its


20

17
–

18
pe

rm
its

(3
6

un
its

)


20
18

(to
da

te
)–

1
pe

rm
it

(2
un

its
)


Th

re
e

Cr
ee

ks
(E

TJ
)


20

15
–

19
pe

rm
its


20

16
–

11
4

pe
rm

its


20
17

–
10

5
pe

rm
its


20

18
(to

da
te

)–
81

pe
rm

its


To
ta

lt
o

da
te

–
31

9
pe

rm
its

C
it

y 
of

 
B

el
to

n
20

16
20

17
20

18
 

(t
o 

da
te

)
Zo

ni
ng

 C
ha

ng
es

18
16

11

Pl
at

s
32

26
10

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 
Pe

rm
it 

Va
lu

at
io

n
$1

6,
04

2,
03

0
$2

6,
75

6,
79

1
$1

4,
47

3,
77

4

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 
Pe

rm
it 

Va
lu

at
io

n
$1

6,
56

1,0
00

$4
2,

14
0

$3
,0

63
,9

05



In
te

re
st

in
g 

Fa
ct

s &
 R

ec
en

t T
re

nd
s

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 N
ew

ly
 C

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 

or
 U

nd
er

w
ay

:
•

Ex
po

 In
n 

an
d 

Su
ite

s
•

Be
ll 

C
ou

nt
y 

Eq
ue

st
ri

an
 

C
en

te
r

•
U

M
H

B 
Re

si
de

nc
e 

H
al

l a
nd

 
H

ar
dy

 H
al

l A
dd

it
io

n
•

Be
lto

n 
Sk

yl
in

e 
O

ff
ic

e 
Bl

dg
on

 L
ak

e 
Ro

ad
•

Bo
ld

 R
ep

ub
lic

 B
re

w
er

y
•

O
ak

 F
ir

e 
Pi

zz
a 

an
d 

Br
ew

•
Lu

ig
i’s

 It
al

ia
n 

G
ar

de
n 

G
ri

ll
•

Bo
st

on
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

•
Pr

o 
St

ar
 R

en
ta

l 
•

Th
re

e 
C

re
ek

s S
to

ra
ge

 
•

Te
xM

ix
O

ff
ic

e 
•

M
ur

ph
y 

G
as

 R
eb

ui
ld

 
•

Se
nd

er
o

Es
ta

te
s

Be
lto

n 
S

ky
lin

e

Ex
po

 I
nn

 a
nd

 S
uit

es

UM
H

B 
Fr

esh
ma

n 
H

al
l

Be
ll 

Co
 E

qu
est

ria
n 

Ce
nte

r

Bo
ld

 R
ep

ub
lic

 B
rew

ing
Oa

k 
Fi

re 
Pi

zza
 &

 B
rew



City Council Agenda Item 
August 14, 2018 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #4 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 5-year lease agreement with 
Higher Ground Properties, LLC, for the lease of 8.024 acres. 
    
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning  
 
Summary Information 
 
The City has been approached by Higher Ground Properties, LLC (HGP) regarding City 
property located next to the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant. This 8.024 
acre tract is located along Nolan Creek before its confluence with the Leon River. HGP 
owns the adjacent 34 acres (2434 E. 6th Ave.) and approached the City with an interest 
in purchasing or leasing the City property. Due to the proximity of the properties along 
the Creek, flooding events have resulted in the accumulation of debris and trash upon 
both properties. In an effort to clean and maintain their property, HGP has suggested it 
would be beneficial to clean and maintain the City property as well, to prevent the debris 
from spilling over to their property.  
 
The vast majority of the City property lies in the floodway, with the remainder located in 
the flood plain; therefore, no structures may be built on this property. A large portion of 
the HGP property (about 50%) also lies in the floodway/floodplain. HGP is uncertain at 
this time what they wish to do with their property, but have been considering 
outdoor/educational type venues to include campgrounds for inner-city youth. Being 
able to use the City property and access Nolan Creek would enhance the use of the 
property for this purpose.  
 
The City currently has no plans for this property, nor are we actively maintaining the 
property. Upon review, Staff feels it is in the City’s best interest to retain ownership at 
this time, but believes a lease agreement would be beneficial to both parties. The City 
property will be maintained by HGP, and they in return will be able to incorporate the 
City acreage and enhanced creek access into their outdoor venue. The City may 
terminate the lease upon 60 days written notice.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Minimal:  $100/year x 5 years = $500 in revenue. 
 
Budgeted: Yes   No 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 14, 2018 

Page 2 of 2   
 

If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     
Capital Project Funds 
 
Funding Source(s): N/A   
 
Recommendation 
 
Authorize City Manager to execute five-year lease agreement. 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Lease agreement 
Property map 
 
 



 1 

LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF BELTON AND  

HIGHER GROUND PROPERTIES, LLC 
 
 
 Agreement of lease, made as of this __________ day of __________, 2018, between 
the CITY OF BELTON, a municipal corporation, referred to in this leas as Lessor, and 
HIGHER GROUND PROPERTIES, LLC, a corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of Texas, having its principal office at 14950 FM 3369, Unit B, Temple, Texas, 
hereinafter called the “lessee”, witnesseth: 
 
 

Demise, Term and Rent 
 

1.  The lessor leases to the lessee a tract of land consisting of approximately 8.024 
acres, described as A0020BC O T TYLER, Property ID 467657, as shown in Exhibit ____; 

 
 

for the term of sixty (60) months from the 1st day of September, 2018, to the 31st day of 
August, 2023, at a yearly rental of One Hundred and No/100 ($100.00) Dollars, payable 
at the office of the lessor, in advance, on the first day of August each year, the first 
payment to be made on the 1st day of August, 2018.  Renewal of the lease may be 
considered upon request. 
 

Termination 
 

2.  This lease shall terminate and become null and void without further notice on 
the expiration of the term specified in paragraph 1 above, and any holding over by 
Lessee after the expiration of that term, other than as provided above, shall not 
constitute a renewal of the lease or give Lessee any rights under the lease in or to the 
leased premises.  Lessor reserves the right to terminate this lease upon 60 days written 
notice to lessee.   
 
 

Lessee's Covenants 
 
 3.  The lessee agrees: 
 

 (a) That it will pay the said rent at the times and in the manner aforesaid. 
 
 (b) That it will during the said term insure and keep insured in the name 
of the lessor the leased property in at least the sum of:  
 
LIABILITY INSURANCE AMOUNTS: Bodily Injury Per Person: 



 2 

ONE MILLION DOLLARS 
 ($1,000,000.00) 
 
Bodily Injury Per Occurrence: 
TWO MILLION DOLLARS 
 ($2,000,000.00) 

 
and that it will pay all the premiums necessary for those purposes as the same 
shall become due, and will promptly deliver to the lessor the policies of 
insurance and the receipts for such premiums:  Provided, that if the lessee shall 
at any time fail to insure or keep insured as aforesaid, the lessor may do all 
things necessary to effect or maintain such insurance, and any moneys expended 
by it for that purpose shall be repayable by the lessee on demand, and may be 
recovered as rent in arrear. 
 
 (c) That it will promptly pay all city utility rates or other municipal 
charges which may become payable during the continuance of this lease. 
 
 (d) That it will provide basic maintenance of the property in conjunction 
with the maintenance of their own property to include mowing/shredding and 
removal of miscellaneous debris.  
 
 (e) That it will not injure, overload, or deface or suffer to be injured, 
overloaded, or defaced the premises or any part thereof. 
 
 (f) That it will not make or suffer any unlawful, improper, or offensive use 
of the premises, or any use or occupancy thereof contrary to any law of the state 
or any ordinance of the said city, including zoning and development standards, 
now or hereafter made, or which shall be injurious to any person or property, or 
which shall be liable to endanger or affect any insurance on the said property or 
to increase the premium thereof. 
 
 (g) That it will not make any alterations or additions in or to the premises 
without the written consent of the lessor. 
 
 (h) That it will not assign, underlet, or part with the possession of the 
whole or any part of the premises without first obtaining the written consent of 
the lessor. 
 
 (i) the lessor at all reasonable times may enter to view the premises and to 
make repairs which the lessor may see fit to make, or to show the premises to 
persons who may wish to lease or buy, and that during three months next 



 3 

preceding the expiration of the term he will permit the lessor to place and keep 
upon the front of the property a notice that the premises are for rent or for sale. 
 
 (j) That at the expiration of the said term, or upon termination by lessor, it 
will peaceably yield up to the lessor the premises as the same now are or may be 
put in by the lessor. 
 
 (k) That all property of any kind that may be on the premises during the 
continuance of this lease shall be at the sole risk of the lessee, and that the lessor 
shall not be liable to the lessee or any other person for any injury, loss, or damage 
to property or to any person on the premises. 
 
 (l) That no assent, express or implied, by the lessor to any breach of any of 
the lessee's covenants, shall be deemed to be a waiver of any succeeding breach 
of the same covenant. 

 
 

Lessor's Covenant for Quiet Enjoyment 
 
 3. The lessor covenants that the lessee shall peaceably hold and enjoy the 
premises. 
 
 

Proviso for Re-entry 
 
 4. If the lessee or its representatives shall neglect or fail to perform and observe 
any covenant which on the lessee's part is to be performed, or if its leasehold estate shall 
be taken on execution, or if the lessee shall be declared bankrupt or insolvent according 
to law, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, then the lessor may, 
immediately or at any time thereafter, and without notice or demand, enter into and 
upon the premises or any part thereof, and repossess the same as of their former estate, 
and expel the lessee and those claiming under him and remove their effects, forcibly, if 
necessary, without being taken or deemed to be guilty of any manner of trespass, and 
thereupon this lease shall terminate, but without prejudice to any remedies which 
might otherwise be used by the lessor for arrears of rent or any breach of the lessee's 
covenants. 
 
 
 
 EXECUTED in multiple originals on the _______ day of _______________, 2018, 
in Bell County, Texas. 
  
 



 4 

LESSOR:      LESSEE: 
 
CITY OF BELTON     HIGHER GROUND PROPERTIES, LLC  

 
By:_____________________________  By:_____________________________ 
       Sam Listi, City Manager          , President 
 
 
 
State of Texas  § 
County of Bell  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2018, by 
Sam Listi, City Manager, City of Belton, a municipal corporation. 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
State of Texas  § 
County of Bell  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2018, 
by__________, President of Higher Ground Properties, LLC, a Texas corporation, on 
behalf of said corporation. 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 





City Council Agenda Item 
August 14, 2018 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #5 
 
Consider a resolution supporting roadway and trail project submissions for the Killeen-
Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO) 2045 Metropolitan Transportation 
Plan.  
    
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning  
 
Summary Information 
 
KTMPO has issued a Call for Projects as part of the Mobility 2045 Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan (MTP) update. Projects included in the MTP may be funded through 
various sources at the local, state, and federal levels based on established priority and 
funding availability.  
 
The deadline for submitting projects is August 31, 2018. Submitted projects will be 
scored by regional partners based on approved criteria, and then ranked accordingly. 
The ranking of newly submitted projects will be worked into those already existing in the 
MTP based on the scores. 
 
Belton currently has 14 roadway projects and one livability project in the MTP that have 
not been funded, or only partially funded (Loop 121 widening), as a result of our 
submission and regional ranking that occurred in 2016 (see Exhibit A). In addition to 
these, we propose to submit one roadway project and seven livability projects, as noted 
below. 
 
Roadway:  

• Mesquite Road from I-35 to Shanklin Road; widen plus shoulders and sidewalks. 
 
Livability (bike/pedestrian):   

• 13th Avenue from Main Street to Waco Road; sidewalk and Shared Use Path 
(SUP). 

• Beal Street from 6th Avenue to 13th Avenue and Downing to 24th Avenue; 
sidewalk. 

• 6th Avenue from Main Street to I-35; sidewalk and SUP; relocate utilities. 
• Commerce/Industrial from Sparta Road to Main Street; SUP. 
• Avenue H from Main Street to Saunders Street; sidewalk. 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 14, 2018 

Page 2 of 2   
 

• Rails to Trails from Confederate Park to Taylors Valley Road & Leon River 
Bridge; SUP--project coordinated with Temple. Will replace existing project 
B40-06. 

• W. Central Avenue from Main Street to Pearl Street; sidewalk and pedestrian 
crossing infrastructure at traffic signal. 

 
More detailed descriptions and maps of the projects are included as Exhibit B.  
 
We would like feedback from the Council regarding priority of these projects. Our priority 
recommendation is as follows with the roadway project shown in red text and livability 
projects shown in green: 
 
 Priority Project 

1    13th Avenue 
2    Beal Street 
3     6th Avenue 
4      Mesquite Road 
5     Commerce/Industrial 
6    Avenue H 
7   Rails to Trails 
8   W. Central Ave 

 
In addition, we recommend current project priority remain unchanged, except for the 
insertion of Mesquite Road as number 8. Our proposal is shown in Exhibit C. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Varies with project and type of funding. 
 
Budgeted: Yes   No 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     
Capital Project Funds 
 
Funding Source(s): N/A   
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve resolution supporting project submissions for the 2045 MTP update. 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 
Exhibit A:  MTP current project excerpt 
Exhibit B:  Detailed project maps and description 
Exhibit C:  Current and proposed MTP project details and priority 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-19-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, SUPPORTING, THE MOBILITY 
2045 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN ROADWAY AND TRAIL 
PROJECT SUBMISSIONS FOR BELTON. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton has a strong tradition of planning for its future 
needs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton has emphasized transportation planning through, 

and participation in, the Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO), 
serving as its Regional Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO) 
has issued a Call for Projects (CFP) to update the project listing of the Mobility 2045 
Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) is a long-range plan, 

which outlines the long-term goals for the region’s transportation system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton is proposing to submit roadway and trail projects 

that will provide significant benefits to the Belton community; and 
 

WHEREAS, the roadway and trail projects will address the KTMPO goals, to 
include: 

 
1. Improve Mobility 
2. Reduce Congestion  
3. Improve Access to Jobs, Homes, Goods, and Services 
4. Improve Safety, Reliability, and Efficiency in Transportation System  
5. Promote a Healthier Environment 
6. Encourage Regional Coordination in Decision Making; and 

 
WHEREAS, the projects will be evaluated and scored by the KTMPO Staff and 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), with final approval of a project listing by the 
KTMPO Transportation Planning Policy Board (TPPB).   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City of Belton, acting through its governing body, hereby confirms 

that it supports the Belton roadway and trail project submissions, attached as Exhibit A, 
for the Mobility 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP). 

 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 



 2 

time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act.  

  
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Belton City Council on this the 14th day of 

August, 2018. 
 
APPROVED: 

 
 

______________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A

Ranking Project Name Extent Project Type

1 13th Ave Main to Waco Rd L

2 Beal Street 13th to 6th; Downing to 24th L

3 6th Avenue Main to IH 35 L

4 Mesquite Rd IH 35 to Shanklin Rd R

5 Commerce/Industrial Sparta to Main L

6 Ave H Main to Saunders L

7 Rails to Trails L

8 W Central Ave Main to Pearl L

R = Roadway Project; L = Livability Project

2045 Mobility MTP Update
New Belton Projects

Conf. Park to Taylors Valley & 
Leon River Bridge



KTMPO ID Project Name

FY2015-FY2018 

TIP

G01-PE Preventative Projects $8,523,944.00

G03-MT Maintenance Projects $20,679,230.00

G04-BR Bridge Projects $6,355,929.00

G06-SA Safety Projects $1,811,997.00

$37,371,100.00

KTMPO ID Project Name Full Extents Description Project Score Project Ranking Funding Order Estimated Cost CMP Network Flagged
4

Funding Sources
3

Funding

W40-06
1 US 190

FM 3423 (Indian Trail) 

to FM 2410 in W 

Belton
5

Widen main lanes from 4 to 6 lane divided freeway and ramp alignments 87.45 1 1 $39,000,000 Yes H 2

W40-05
1 US 190

FM 2410 in W Belton to 

IH 35
Widen main lanes from 4 to 6 lane divided freeway and ramp alignments 83.79 2 2 $35,000,000 Yes EJ

C30-03b Business US 190 Phase I
FM 1113 (Avenue  D) 

to Constitution Dr
5

Construction of a raised median and conversion of one travel lane in each 

direction to a sidewalk/bicycle lane
5 81.00 3 3 $10,000,000 Yes EJ 2

W40-04a
1 Loop 121 Phase 1 FM 439 to IH 35 Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided roadway with bike/ped improvements 56.45 13 4 $27,000,000 Yes EJ, H, P

Partially funded using 

$5,000,000 of Category 2 

W40-03
1 US 190 Turnaround At Clear Creek Rd

5
Roadway reconfiguration to improve turning movements (Turnaround)

5 42.11 41 5 $4,000,000 No EJ
Category 2 ($2,100,000) 

Category 7 ($1,900,000)

K40-27
1 SH 195

0.1 MI N of FM 3470 to 

0.1 MI S of FM 3470
5

Turnaround underpass for northbound and southbound traffic on SH 195 

frontage rads and FM 3470 (Stan Schlueter)
5 42.68 40 6 $800,000 Yes EJ 7

H35-01 US  190 at FM 2410

East Central TX Expy 

W to East Central TX 

Expy East

Construction of a west to east turnaround at FM 2410
5 67.11 5 7 $5,000,000 Yes __ 7

W35-01 US 190 Bypass

E of Copperas Cove to 

0.5 mi W of Lampasas 

County Line

Phase 2, Construct final 2 lanes of ultimate 4 lane divided roadway 64.00 6 8 $48,150,000 Yes EJ, L, H, 

K30-13 Chaparral Rd SH 195 to FM 3481 Widen from 2 to 4 lane roadway with center turn lane, curb and gutter 61.44 8 9 $18,666,900 No EJ, H

W35-05 US 190 At SH 195 Upgrade interchange 63.34 7 10 $52,450,000 Yes EJ

H30-05 Warriors Path 
FM 2410 (Knights Way) 

to Old Nolanville Rd

Widen from 2 to 4 lane roadway with curb & gutter, medians and access 

controls
59.77 9 11 $8,969,950 No EJ, H

H30-01
Business 190/Veterans 

Memorial Blvd

Roy Reynolds Dr to US 

190

Reduce roadway profile, install curb & gutter, access management/driveway 

control, drainage improvements, sidewalks, medians and other context 

sensitive solutions

59.44 10 12 $5,000,000 No L, H

W30-17 FM 93 SH 317 to Wheat Rd Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided roadway 53.55 19 13 $8,794,843 Yes EJ, H, P

B40-11 FM 2271 FM 439 to US 190 Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided roadway 58.33 12 14 $49,700,000 No EJ, H, P

T40-07 Outer Loop/Old Waco Rd

Drainage Channel 

(south of FM 2305 and 

Walmart) to S of 

Jupiter Driver/Tarver 

Dr

Widen from 2 to 4 lanes with divided roadway and curb and gutter; includes 

hike & bike trail and bike deedicated lanes to incorporate multimodal 

transportation

55.88 14 15 $6,275,000 No P

K30-23 Jasper Bridge Expansion
S Florence Rd to 

Jasper Dr
Construct 8 lane overpass with pedestrian improvements with turnarounds 55.44 15 16 $24,628,150 No EJ

Proposed Roadway, Transportation Choices/Livability, and Preventative Maintenance Projects

$12,579,008.00

1
Adminstrative Amendment on July 5, 2017

Various Locations

ROADWAY PROJECTS

S
h
o
rt R

a
n
g
e
 F

u
n
d
in

g
: $

2
2
5
, 7

2
1
,6

7
4

5
L
o
n
g
 R

a
n
g
e
 F

u
n
d
in

g
: $

1
3
6
,9

0
5
,3

5
8

5

Various Locations $3,125,284.00

Various Locations $497,599.00

Total: $53,803,893.00

Various Locations $37,602,002.00

PREVENTATIVE AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS

Description FY2017-FY2020 TIP

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
    

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp



T15-06k IH 35 S Loop 363 to US 190 Reconstruct and widen to 8 lanes 76.14 4 17 $129,700,000 Yes EJ, H

C30-03a Business 190 Phase II FM 116 S to Ave D
Change the center turn to a raised center turn and convert one travel lane in 

each direction to 6' sidewalk, 5' bicycle lane and 1.5' curb and gutter
55.00 16 18 $7,400,000 Yes __

K40-16
East Trimmier Rd 

Improvements

Stagecoach Rd to 

Chaparral Rd
Widen from 2 to 4 lane roadway with center turn lane, curb and gutter 54.02 17 19 $6,047,000 No EJ

K40-24 Featherline Dr
Stagecoach Rd to 

Chaparral Rd
Widen from 2 to 4 lane roadway with center turn lane with roundabouts 53.99 18 20 $7,886,382 No __

B40-10 FM 1670
US 190 to Three 

Creeks Boulevard
Widen from 2 to 4 lane roadway with a 10' hike and bike trail 58.77 11 21 $5,643,360 No EJ, H

W35-08 FM 93
FM 1741 (S 31st) to SH 

95

Widen from 2 to 4 lanes, provide for a raised median and construct grade 

separation at UP RR
52.87 20 22 $12,588,000 No EJ, H

W35-07 NW Loop 363
Lucius McClevey to 

Industrial Blvd
Construct main lanes to provide a four lane freeway 52.45 21 23 $45,000,000 Yes H

K25-04 SH 195 At Business 190 Construct grade separation over Business 190 and BNSF RR 52.01 22 24 $20,000,000 Yes EJ

K40-11 WS Young Mall Dr to AJ Hall Blvd Add turn lane and relocate traffic signal at Mall Dr to AJ Hall Blvd 51.90 23 25 $4,889,546 Yes EJ

K40-06 FM 2484 SH 195 to IH 35 Widen to 4 lane roadway 51.88 24 26 $35,000,000 No H, ARZ, P

W30-23 Loop 363 SP 290 to SH 95
Upgrade to 4 lane freeway with continous frontage roads and grade 

separation at MLK Blvd
51.44 25 27 $16,784,000 Yes EJ

K40-26 Cunningham Rd
US 190 to Little Nolan 

Rd

Construct and widen from 2 to 4 lane road with shoulder, median turn lane, 

with bike/ped facilities
51.22 26 28 $7,817,350 No EJ

H15-01 FM 3423/Indian Trail Business 190 to US 190

Construct an urban cross-section roadway with sidewalks, median and 

pedestrian enhancements within the appropriate context senisitive cross 

section

50.11 27 29 $3,391,800 No __

B40-08 Sparta Rd
Loop 121 to Dunn's 

Canyon Rd
Construct protected turn lane with 10' wide hike and bike trail 50.11 28 30 $2,080,000 No H, P

T35-36a 1st Street SE Loop 363 to Ave M
Widen from 4 lane undivided to 4 lane divided roadway with curb and gutter, 

hike and bike traills and will incorporate multimodal design
49.88 29 31 $8,500,000 Yes EJ

H30-07 FM 3481
Prospector Drive to FM 

2484
Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided roadway 49.45 30 32 $13,109,435 No EJ, H, ARZ, P

W35-03 SH 195
FM 3470 to Chaparral 

Rd
Reconstruct to 4 lane freeway with frontage roads 48.45 31 33 $39,862,000 Yes EJ, H

C35-02a FM 116

S Main (through 

existing parking 

facility) to Ave B

Create an underpass of the existing BNSF railroad 48.13 32 34 $12,550,000 Yes __

K40-17
Trimmier Rd 

Improvements

Stagecoach Rd to 

Chaparral Rd
Widen from 2 to 4 lane roadway with center turn lane, curb and gutter 47.47 33 35 $6,873,825 No P

W30-13 FM 2484 FM 1670 to IH 35 Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided roadway 46.88 34 36 $3,147,000 No ARZ

W35-12 US 190
2 mi S of FM 436 to 

Milam County Line
Widen to 4 lane divided rural highway 45.56 35 37 $62,800,000 Yes H

T15-02 Kegley Rd

856 ft S of FM 2305 to 

450 ft S of Wildflower 

Lane

Widen and add middle turn lane, curb and gutter, includes 12' shared use 

path and will incorporate multimodal design
45.33 36 38 $3,800,000 No H

W30-21 NW Loop 363
At FM 2305 and S Loop 

363
Reconstrct interchange at FM 2305 and LP 363 45.22 37 39 $18,000,000 Yes __

H30-03 FM 3219

Veterans Memorial 

Blvd/Business 190 to 

FM 439

Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided roadway 44.56 38 40 $8,000,000 No L, H

K25-05 Old Florence Rd Elms Rd to Jasper Dr Widen from 2 to 5 lane section with curb and gutter 42.77 39 41 $6,292,450 No EJ

B30-03 Belton Outer Loop East 
IH 35 at Shanklin Rd to 

FM 436
Construct 2 lane roadway with shoulder 42.00 42 42 $12,060,000 No EJ

N40-07 Warriors Path 
Old Nolanville Rd to US 

190
Extend Warriors Path to US 190 41.32 43 43 $5,703,255 No H

N40-06
Nolanville Railroad 

Crossing Safety

Pleasant Hill Cemetary 

Rd to Jack Rabbit Road 

(4 RR Crossings)

Upgrade crossings for better connections and safety 41.22 44 44 $500,000 No __

T25-09 Outer Loop
IH 35 to Central Point 

Pkwy

Widen from 2 to 4 lanes with divided roadway and curb and gutter with 

sidewalks and dedicated bike lanes to incorporate multimodal design
39.68 45 45 $25,000,000 No H

B30-02
Shanklin Road West, Outer 

Loop

IH 35 to east end of 

Three Creeks 

subdivision

Construct 4 lane roadway 39.55 46 46 $10,820,000 No EJ

W35-02 SH 195 At FM 3470 and SH 195 Upgrade interchange 39.44 47 47 $52,450,000 Yes EJ

W25-02 SH 36
SH 317 to Lake Belton 

Rd
Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided roadway 38.88 48 48 $36,715,000 No H, P

B40-07 Connell Street US 190 to Loop 121 Widen from 2 to 4 lanes with center turn lane and 5' wide sidewalks 38.78 49 49 $5,244,000 No EJ

U
n
fu

n
d
e
d
 L

ist

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp



T40-09 Outer Loop/Old Waco Rd
S of Jupiter to 

Floodplain

Widen from 2 to 4 lanes with divided roadway and curb and gutter; includes 

hike & bike trail and bike dedicated lanes to incorporate multimodal 

transportation 

38.33 51 51 $9,700,000 No __

K40-03
FM 3470 (Stan Schlueter 

Loop)

SH 201 to US 190 

Bypass
Construct 4 lane FM Road with continous turn lane and shoulders 37.79 52 52 $15,000,000 No EJ, H

N40-03 Old Nolanville Rd

Bridge on Old 

Nolanville Rd to US 

190

Improve roadway surface, widen exisiting lanes and stripe along shoulder 37.44 53 53 $793,770 No __

B30-01 George Wilson Extension
FM 93 at George 

Wilson Rd to FM 439
Construct 2 lane roadway with shoulder 35.78 54 54 $1,386,984 No EJ

B40-01 Huey Drive
Washington Dr to IH 35 

Frontage Rd
Construct 2 lane roadway with center turn lane 35.45 55 55 $2,615,000 No EJ

B40-09 West Avenue D Loop 121 to Wheat Rd Construct 2 lane roadway with sidewalks and bike lanes 33.67 56 56 $4,918,500 No EJ

T40-10 Outer Loop Floodplain to IH 35
Extend divided roadway with curb and gutter, includes sidewalks and traill 

and incorporate multimodal design
32.77 57 57 $13,000,000 No __

S40-03 West Village Rd
Thomas Arnold Rd to 

IH 35
Widening roadway, add turn lanes and bike/ped facilities 32.33 58 58 $300,500 No H, ARZ, ES

T40-04 Hogan Road SH 317 to S Pea Ridge
Widen from 2 lane to 3 lane with curb and gutter, includes sidewalks and 

trail and will incorporate multimodal design
31.90 59 59 $3,500,000 No __

K40-25 Bunny Trail Signals At Clear Creek Rd Install traffic signal 31.90 60 60 $190,000 No EJ

W35-09 FM 93 SH 95 to SH 36 Widen from 2 to 4 lanes, provide for a raised median 31.76 61 61 $5,245,000 No EJ, H

B40-02 Southwest Parkway Loop 121 to W Ave O Construct 2 lane roadway with center turn lane 30.56 62 62 $4,200,500 No EJ

D40-01
North Waco Road (Old 81) 

Roadway North

West Main St to West 

Big Elm
Widen from 2 to 4 lanes, with curb and gutter, bridge improvements 23.93 63 63 $4,600,000 No __

T40-05 Westfield Blvd
Prairie View Rd to 

Airport Rd/ SH 36

Extend 4 lane divided roadway with curb and gutter; includes sidewalk and 

hike & bike path to incorporate multimodal transportation options
28.67 64 64 $3,100,000 No __

D40-03 Old 81 Roadway South
FM 1237 to Loves 

Overpass
Widen from 2 to 4 lanes with bicycle lanes and curb and gutter 28.45 65 65 $3,500,000 No H

C25-02 FM 1113 

Signal Light at FM 

116/Ave B to Summers 

Rd

Widens from 2 to 4 lanes with ADA-Compliant sidewalks UNS N/A N/A $17,149,700 No H ,P

C25-03 Big Divide Loop US 190 to FM 1113 Construct raised median, curb and gutter with enclosed storm drainage UNS N/A N/A $10,200,000 No H

C25-04 North Side Loop FM 1113 to FM 116
Widen from 2 to 4 lanes with raised median curb and gutter with enclosed 

storm drainage
UNS N/A N/A $8,280,000 No __

C40-01 FM 116 South
Copperas Cove City 

limits to SH 201

Upgrade Ivy Gap Rd and Ivy Mountain Rd to FM status, widen roadway from 2 

to 5 lanes with curb and gutter
UNS N/A N/A $24,960,000 No EJ, L, H, ARZ

H40-03 Chaparral Road
FM 3481 to Killeen City 

Limits on Chaparral Rd
Widen and straighten roadway and construct hike/bike trail UNS N/A N/A N/A No EJ, H

H40-04 E FM 2410

East side from FM 2410 

Community Park to 

Simmons Rd

Expand roadway to  include curb & gutter, access management control, 

turning lanes, drainiage improvements, and context sensitive solutions
UNS N/A N/A N/A Yes EJ, L, H

N40-08
Warrior's Path Extension 

Phase II
US 190 to FM 439 Consturct 2 lane roadway UNS N/A N/A $8,000,000 No __

N40-10
FM 439 Safety 

Improvements

FM 439 at Lonesome 

Oak Dr
Add turning lane, shoulder expansion and possible traffic signals/signs UNS N/A N/A N/A No __

W30-06 SH 201 @ Killeen Airport
Killeen Airport 

Entrance
Construct interchange UNS N/A N/A $7,343,000 No EJ, H

W35-04
2 FM 439

Roy Reynolds Dr to FM 

3219
Widen from 4 to 6 lanes UNS N/A N/A $11,539,000 No EJ

W40-04b
1 Loop 121 Phase 2 IH 35 to FM 436 Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided roadway with bike/ped improvements UNS N/A N/A $6,000,000 Yes EJ, H, P

3
Funding includes Categories 2, 4, 7, 11 & others as appropriate.  

Symbol

EJ

L 

H

ARZ

ES

P 

Endangered Species

Park

Environmental Justice Community of Concern

1
Projects received funds through TxDOT Project Development. 

2
W35-04 original project score was 68.77

4
Flagged

U
n
fu

n
d
e
d
 L

ist
U

n
sc

o
re

d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

Cemetrries, Archaeological Sites, Historical Markers

Landfill

Aquifer Recharge Zone

5
Adminstrative Amendment on August 25, 2017

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Stamp



KTMPO ID Project Name Full Extents Description Project Score Project Ranking Funding Order Estimated Cost CMP Network Flagged
3

Funding Sources
2

Funding

T40-12 31st St Sidewalks (FM1741)
Marlandwood Rd to 

Canyon Creek Rd
Installation of 6' sidewalks on both sides of FM1741 94.35 1 1 $500,000 Yes __ 7

T40-15

Adams Ave/Central Ave. 

Bicycle/Pedestrian 

Improvements

IH 35 to MLK Jr Blvd 

(Spur 290)

Installation of on-street bike lane and ADA compliant sidewalks travelling 

east on Central Avenue and west on Adams Avenue
5 92.00 2 2 $1,913,044 Yes EJ, H 7

C35-02b
Railroad Underpass 

Sidewalks

S Main (through 

exisiting parking 

facility) to Ave B

Construct 10' wide sidewalk in conjunction with the FM 116 underpass 

project
80.90 4 3 $920,000 Yes __

C40-05 FM 116 & 3046 Sidewalks
Business 190 to Dennis 

St.
5 Construct ADA compliant sidewalks and bike lanes

5 77.88 5 4 $975,000 No H, P 7

K40-21b
Heritage Oaks Hike and 

Bike Trail, Segment 5

Chaparral Rd to USACE 

Property
Construct shared use path for pedestrian and bicyclists 75.99 6 5 $1,300,000 No EJ, ARZ 7

C40-04c
The Narrows (Charles 

Tillman Way)

Charles Tillman Way 

from Constitution Dr 

to Charles Tillman Way 

@ RG III Blvd
5

Construct sidewalks for pedestrian/bicycle use
5 70.32 11 6 $170,000 No EJ, H 7

B40-05

Belton Hike and Bike Trail 

Extension South (South 

Belton Shared Use Path)

IH 35 from FM 436 to 

Confederate Park 

Drive

Construct 12 ft wide hike and bike trail.  Project will extend along FM 436, 

IH 35 northbound frontage road and Confederate Park Drive.
69.80 12 12 $1,790,570 No EJ, P 9 (TASA)

S40-04a
1 Main St Sidewalks    Phase 

1

Salado Plaza Dr to 

College Hill Dr (North 

End)

Main St. improvements to include lighting, sidewalks, & striping for bicycles 81.01 3 7 $1,616,956 No H, ARZ, ES 7

B40-06
Belton North Trail 

Extension

Confederate Park to 

Nolan Creek
Construct 10' hike/bike trail 73.33 7 8 $473,510 No EJ, P

C40-04a
The Narrows (Constitution  

Drive)

Constitution Dr from 

Bowen Ave to 0.2 MI S 

Martin Luther King Jr. 

Blvd
5

Construction of sidewalks for pedestrian/bicycle use
5 72.78 8 9 $850,000 No EJ, H

Category 7 ($360,000) 

Category 9 ($490,000)

C40-04b
The Narrows (RG III at Old 

Copperas Cove Rd)

RG III Blvd from 

Constitution Dr to Old 

Copperas Cove RD at 

Constitution Dr.
5

Construct sidewalks for pedestrian/bicycle use
5 70.87 9 10 $680,000 No EJ, H 9

T40-13 Georgetown RR Trail S 5th St to Leon River Construct 10 ft wide trail 70.68 10 11 $2,000,000 No EJ, H, P

B40-12
Belton Southwest Trail 

Expansion

Confederate Park to 

Nolan Creek 

Pedestrian Bridge

Construct 10' hike/bike trail 69.78 13 13 $3,252,480 No EJ, H, P

N40-04 Park Connectivity

City Park along 

Mesquite St and Ave H 

to 10th St

Construct 10' wide sidewalk, ADA ramps and crosswalks, widen pavement by 

32" with curb and gutter
69.75 14 14 $1,558,802 No P

N40-05 Spur 439 Connectivity Main St to North Dr
Construct 10' wide sidewalk, ADA ramps and crosswalks, improve shoulders at 

Main St 
69.55 15 15 $593,230 No __

D40-02
North Waco Rd (Old 81) 

Sidewalk 

West Main St to West 

Big Elm
Construct 10' wide pedestrian/bicycle facility 69.22 16 16 $1,700,000 No __

T40-25 Bird Creek Interceptor 

N side of Lions 

Community Park to 

Midway Dr (near 

Bonham Middle School)

Construct 8 ft wide trail 69.11 17 17 $375,000 No P

T25-05 FM 2271 Trail
FM 2305 to Miller 

Spring Park
Construct 8 ft wide trail 67.79 18 18 $950,000 Yes H, P

S40-02 Pace Park Trail
Pace Park along Pace 

Park Rd
Construct 10 ft wide trail 60.19 19 19 $199,965 No ARZ, ES, P

S
h
o
rt R

a
n
g
e
 F

u
n
d
in

g
: $

5
,9

2
9
,8

8
9

5

TRANSPORTATION CHOICES AND LIVABILITY PROJECTS
U

n
fu

n
d
e
d
 L

ist
L
o
n
g
 R

a
n
g
e
 F

u
n
d
in

g
: $

1
5
,5

4
4
,4

3
0

5

CMaxwell
Stamp

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
funded

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
replace

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text



N40-09 Pleasant Hill Rd
Lonsesome Oak Drive 

to Ave I
Construct Class 2, buffered on-street bike lane UNS N/A N/A $500,000 No H

N40-11
Nolan Creek Off System 

Trail

Bridge on Old 

Nolanville Rd to Levy 

Crossing

Construct 10 ft multi-use trail boarding Nolan Creek UNS N/A N/A N/A No H

N40-12
Jack Rabbit Road Bike 

Thoroughfare

US 190 to FM 439 and 

through Park to School
Add Class 2 Bike Lanes on system UNS N/A N/A N/A No __

N40-13 Wild Wood Trail
Lonsesome Oak Drive 

to Ave I
Construct an 8 ft wide multi use trail UNS N/A N/A $400,000 No __

S40-01
Enhancements along 

Salado Creek

Main St at College Hill 

Dr to 0.09 mi N of 

Royal St on Center 

Circle

Construct alternate transportation route consisting of shared-use path for 

pedestrians and bicyclists
UNS N/A N/A $368,959 No ARZ, H, ES

S40-04b
1 Main St Sidewalks Phase  2

College Hill Dr to 

Salado Plaza Dr

Main St improvements to include pavement widening, bike paths, drainage 

improvements.
UNS N/A N/A $2,223,044 No H, ARZ, ES

2
Funding includes Categories 2, 7,9 and others as appropriate.  

Symbol
EJ
L 
H

ARZ
ES

P 

KTMPO ID Project Name Full Extents Description Project Score Project Ranking Funding Order Estimated Cost CMP Network Flagged
3

Funding Sources
2

Funding

A40-15
Fleet Replacement 

Project
Killeen UZA Purchase buses* UNS N/A N/A $1,615,000* N/A N/A 7

S
h
o
rt 

R
a
n
g
e
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 

*Adminstrative Amendment on August 25, 2017

KTMPO ID Description Funding

G01-PE Various Locations

G03-MT Various Locations

G04-BR Various Locations

G06-SA Various Locations

KTMPO ID Description Funding

G01-PE Various Locations

G03-MT Various Locations

G04-BR Various Locations

G06-SA Various Locations

5
Note:

November 16, 2016
June 21, 2017

July 5, 2017*

August 28, 2017*
November 16, 2017*

* Administrative Amendments 

MTP Amendment Dates

August 17, 2016

The MTP Project Listing is periodically amended to add, remove, or modify details about our transportation projects.

Formal amendments require action by our Policy Board and Public Comment Period. 

January 21, 2015

November 18, 2015

January 20, 2016

April 20, 2016

Project Name

A) Fiscal constraint is based upon forecasted revenue reflected in the 2040 MTP that was adopted in 2014. Figures have been revised to include additional funding the MPO has received as of 

November 16, 2016 that were not in the original forecast. Also, figures have neem revised to subtract dollars for projects that have been funded as of November 16, 2016. Therefore, the figures 

B) Updated figures represented in the 2017 Unified Transportation Program have only been included for Category 2 for FY2018-2026, since original projection had $0 for Category 2 for short range. 

Long Range Funded (2024-2040)

Project Name
Preventative Projects

Grouped CSJ Placeholder

Long Range 

Funding: 

$295,989,993
5

Maintenance Projects 

Bridge Projects

Safety Projects

December 21, 2017*
March 14, 2018

Preventative Projects

Grouped CSJ Placeholder

Short Range 

Funding: 

$74,629,006
5

Maintenance Projects 

Bridge Projects

Safety Projects

PREVENTATIVE AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS

Cemeteries, Archaeological Sites, Historical Markers
Aquifer Recharge Zone
Endangered Species

Park

1
Projects received funds through TxDOT Project Development. 

3
Flagged

Environmental Justice Community of Concern
Landfill

U
n
sc

o
re

d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

TRANSIT PROJECTS

Short Range Funded (2014-2023)

4
Adminstrative Amendment on August 25, 2017



CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
Proposed Project for KTMPO      2045 MTP Update

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text



CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
PROJECT A:  Mesquite RoadFrom I35 to Shanklin RoadWiden to 2 lanes with curb and   gutter, shoulders and 6' sidewalk  on each side. Est $5,130,000.



CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
PROJECT B:  Commerce/Industrial10' SUP on east side of Commerce and   on north side of Industrial. Curb/gutter   will be provided along pavement edge of   Commerce for pedestrian safety.  Est $1,480,000.



13th:  5' sidewalk on north side from
Main to Woodall; transition to 10' SUP on 
north side from Woodall to Waco Rd.
10' ROW needed on north side from Main to Beal
5' ROW needed on north side from Beal to

  Blair.  Est $605,833.

PROJECT C:  



CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
PROJECT D:  Beal (2)5' sidewalk on east side from	Downing to 24th.  Est $144,000.

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
PROJECT D:  Beal (1)From  13th to RR:  5’ sidewalk on both sides; 5’ ROW and 10’ UE needed on both sides.From  RR to 6th Ave:  5’ sidewalk on west side.  Est $327,000.



CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
PROJECT E:  Ave HFrom Main St to Saunders St5' sidewalk on north side.Reconstruct roadway and widen  to 2 lanes with curb and  gutter from Connell to Saunders

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
Approx 40' ROW exists; 5' ROW  needed along north side.Est. $554,600.

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
Avenue H



CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
PROJECT F:  W. Central AveFrom Main Street to Pearl StreetReplace sidewalk with 5' wide ADA  compliant sidewalk on north side of  CentralInstall pedestrian crossing   infrastructure at Main Street and   Central (four corners).Est $483,750.



PROJECT G:  Confederate Park to Leon River 
Connect to South Belton SUP (B40-05) along 
I35. Construct 10" SUP along east side of I35 
to 6th Avenue, cross 6th Avenue at signalized 
intersection, continue westward along north 
side of 6th Ave to Taylors Valley, cross 
Taylors Valley and connect to Georgetown 
RR, connect to updated Temple project 
T40-13 which crosses Leon River.

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
Est $2,040,000.



CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
From I35 to Main St6' sidewalk on north side10' SUP on south sideRelocate water/sewer linesRelocate other utilities underground

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
PROJECT H:  6th Avenue

CMaxwell
Typewritten Text
Approx 70' ROW exists.  Estimate 10' ROW needed on   south side.  10' UE needed on  both sides.Est $6,000,000.



EXHIBIT C

Projects in 2040 MTP
Roadway Projects

MTP Rank Funding Order ID Name Extent Estimated Cost

Staff 
Proposed 
Ranking

CC Rank 
in 2016  

2 2 W40-05 US 190 FM 2410 in W Belton to IH 35 $45,500,000 (TxDOT)
13 4 W40-04a Loop 121 ph 1 Lake Rd to IH 35 $27,000,000 ($5 m funded) 1 1
19 13 W30-17 FM 93 SH 317 to Wheat Rd $8,794,843 2 2
12 14 B40-11 FM 2271 Lake Rd to US 190 $49,700,000 3 3
11 21 B40-10 FM 1670 US 190 to Three Creeks $5,643,360 11 10
28 30 B40-08 Sparta Rd Loop 121 to Dunns Canyon Rd $2,080,000 7 7  

Mesquite Rd IH 35 to Shanklin Rd $5,130,000 8
42 42 B30-03 Outer Lp East I35/Shanklin Road to FM 436 $12,060,000 12 11
46 46 B30-02 Outer Lp West I35/Shanklin Road Three Creeks Subd. $10,820,000 10 9
49 49 B40-07 Connell St US 190 to Loop 121 $5,244,000 4 4  
54 54 B30-01 George Wilson Ext. FM 93 to FM 439 $1,386,984 13   - 
55 55 B40-01 Huey Drive Washington Dr to IH 35 $2,615,000 5 5
56 56 B40-09 W. Ave D Loop 121 to Wheat Rd $4,918,500 9 8
62 62 B40-02 Southwest Pkwy Loop 121 to W. Ave O $4,200,500 6 6  
n/a n/a W40-04b Loop 121 ph 2 IH 35 to FM 436 $6,000,000 n/a  

MTP Rank Funding Order ID Name Extent Estimated Cost

Staff 
Proposed 
Ranking

CC Rank 
in 2016

13th Ave Main to Waco Rd $605,833 1
7 7 B40-06 Trail Ext North * Conf. Park to Nolan Creek $473,510 REPLACE 2

Beal (1) 13th to 6th $327,000 2
Beal (2) Downing to 24th $144,000 2
6th Avenue Main to IH 35 $6,000,000 3

 Commerce/Industrial Sparta to Main $1,480,000 4
Ave H Main to Saunders $554,600 5

Replacing B40-06 * Rails to Trails Conf. Park to Taylors Valley & Leon River Brid $2,040,000 6
W Central Ave Main to Pearl $483,750 7

13 13  B40-12 SW Trail Expansion Conf. Pk, IH-14, Lp 121, Nolan Cr Bridge $3,252,480 8 3

Livability Projects



City Council Agenda Item 
August 14, 2018 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #6 
 
Consider an ordinance amending the boundary of Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1, 
established by Ordinance 2004-64 and amended by Ordinance 2017-11, in two areas: 
 

A. adding approximately 156.85 acres in the vicinity of Heritage Park, east of the 
intersection of North Main Street and E. 22nd Avenue; and 
 

B. adding approximately 7.86 acres in the vicinity of the Historic Standpipe Site, west of 
the intersection of South Main Street and W. Avenue I. 

 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam Listi, City Manager 
 
Summary Information 
 
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Number One was created in 2004, and was 
amended once in 2017, to add public property along IH 35. This amended boundary allowed 
for the funding opportunity for a Trail connection between Confederate Park and the Miller 
Heights Neighborhood in the Wall/Holland Road (FM 436) area. This agenda item proposes 
to amend the boundary of the TIRZ to add publicly owned, non-taxable property, in two 
areas identified above and shown on Exhibits A and B. These two proposed expansions will 
provide for the opportunity to allocate TIRZ funds to infrastructure projects in these two 
public sites – the recently expanded Heritage Park site and adjoining streets, and the 
Historic Standpipe site and nearby streets. The additions include exclusively public (city-
owned) properties. 
 
The proposed amendment was presented to the TIRZ Board on July 23, 2018, and it was 
recommended unanimously. Bell County Commissioners have been briefed, and anticipate 
taking action following Council approval of the attached Ordinance. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
N/A – No taxable property is proposed to be added to the TIRZ boundary.    
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of ordinance. 
 
Attachments 
Revised Ordinance 
Exhibit “A” – Map and A-1 Description 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 14, 2018 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Exhibit “B” – Map and B-1 Description 
TIRZ Amendment Statute Excerpt 



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-26 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BOUNDARY OF TAX INCREMENT 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER ONE, CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
___________________________________________________________ 
  
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Belton, Texas, (the “City”), desires to 

amend the boundary of Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One which was 
created in accordance with the Tax Increment Financing Act, Chapter 311 of the Texas 
Tax Code, Vernon’s Texas Codes Annotated (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 25, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Tax Increment 

Reinvestment Zone Number One approved a recommendation to adjust the boundary of 
the Zone to include the areas shown on Exhibits “A” and “B.” 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BELTON, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1:  That the facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this 

ordinance are hereby found and declared to be true and correct. 
 
SECTION 2: That the City Council has made the following findings and 

determinations based on the evidence presented to it: 
 
a) That adjustment of the boundary of the tax increment reinvestment zone as 

described by the maps/descriptions in Exhibits “A” and “B” will result in 
benefits to the City, its residents and property owners. 
 

b) That the adjusted boundary of the reinvestment zone, as defined in Exhibits 
“A” and “B”, meets the criteria for a reinvestment zone set forth in the Act in 
that: 

 
1.  The areas are contiguous geographic areas located wholly within the 

corporate limits of the City. 
 
2. The areas to be included in the new alignment is predominately open and, 

because of obsolete platting or deterioration of structures or lack of site 
improvements, or other factors, this substantially impairs or arrests the 
sound growth of the City. 

 
c) That 100 percent of the property in the proposed adjusted boundary is 

property dedicated to public use. 
 



 2 

d) That the total appraised value of all taxable real property in the proposed 
reinvestment zone according to the most recent appraisal rolls of the City, 
together with the total appraised value of taxable real property in all other 
existing reinvestment zones within the City, according to the most recent 
appraisal rolls of the City, does not exceed 15 percent of the current total 
appraised value of taxable real property in the City and in the industrial 
districts created by the City, if any. 

 
e) That the proposed adjustment to the boundary of the reinvestment zone does 

not contain more than 15 percent of the total appraised value of real property 
taxable by a county or school district.  

 
f) That the improvements in the reinvestment zone will significantly enhance the 

value of all taxable real property in the reinvestment zone. 
 

g) That the development or redevelopment of the proposed property addition to 
the reinvestment zone will not occur solely through private investment in the 
reasonable foreseeable future.  

 
SECTION 3. That the City hereby adjusts the boundary of Tax Increment 

Reinvestment Zone #1 as described in Exhibits “A” and “B” attached. 
 
 SECTION 4: That if any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance 

shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of 
the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage and it is accordingly so ordained.   
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 14th day of August, 2018, at a regular meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Belton, Texas.  

 
     CITY OF BELTON 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
     Marion Grayson, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

City of Belton, Texas 
TIRZ Boundary Expansion 

Heritage Park 
August 2018 

 
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 
 

1. Beginning at the intersection of east ROW line of N. Main Street (TX317) and the north 
ROW line of E. 24th Avenue; thence 
 

2. Easterly along the north ROW line of E. 24th Avenue approximately 230’ to its intersection 
with Hilltop Street; thence 
 

3. Northerly along the west line of Hilltop Street to the northwest corner of the 149.08 acre 
survey of Heritage Park; thence 
 

4. Northeasterly along the northern boundary of the 149.08 acre survey to its intersection with 
the east boundary of the survey, a distance of approximately 900’; thence 
 

5. Southeasterly along the east boundary of the survey to the southeast corner of the 149.08 
acre survey; thence 
 

6. Generally west southwesterly along the boundary of the 149.08 acre survey, north of 
Summer Fun, to the intersection of the south property line with 13th Avenue; thence 
 

7. Easterly, southerly, and westerly incorporating the 13th Avenue ROW from Old Waco 
Road, to its intersection with Park Lane; thence 
 

8. Northerly along the west ROW line of Park Lane ROW, extending northward 
approximately 900’; thence 
 

9. Easterly approximately 75’ to the west boundary line of the 149.08 acre survey of Heritage 
Park; thence 
 

10. Northerly approximately 1,735’ to a point of intersection at the northeast corner of Park 
Place Phase I, Block 2, 3, and 10 (11.029 acre tract); thence 
 

11. Westerly approximately 435’ to a point of intersection at the rear of Lot 1, Block 6, 
Normand Heights Addition Revised; thence 
 

12. Northwesterly along the rear of lots in the Norman Heights Addition Revised subdivision; 
thence 
 

13. Westerly along the south ROW line of E. 22nd Avenue approximately 2,090’ to its 
intersection with the east ROW line of N. Main Street (TX317); thence 
 

14. Northerly along the east ROW line of N. Main Street (TX317) approximately 40’; thence 



 
15. Easterly along the north ROW line of N. 22nd Avenue approximately 1,985’ to its 

intersection with the west ROW line of Hilltop Street; thence 
 

16. Northerly along the west ROW line of Hilltop Street to its intersection with the South ROW 
line of E. 24th Avenue, a distance of approximately 45’; thence 
 

17. Westerly along the south ROW line of E. 24th Avenue, a distance of approximately 205’, 
to its intersection with the east ROW line of N. Main Street; thence 
 

18. Northerly along the east ROW line of N. Main Street (TX317) approximately 40 to the 
point of beginning in this TIRZ boundary expansion. 
 

Estimated Acreage:  156.85 acres 













CITY
LIM

ITS

GE
NE
RA
L

BR
UC
E

PA
RK
S I
DE

GE
NE
RA
L

BR
UC
E

INT
ERS
TAT
E 3
5

CRYER

CHA
RTE
R O
AK

PEARIDGE

DUS TY

INT
ER
S TA
TE 
35

CHARTER OAK

PARKS IDE

W
ILD BOYS

PEA RIDGE

OL
D
W
AC
OPE
A R
IDG
E

£¤317

CO
LL
EG
E S
T

VICKRE
YCIR

ELLIS  AVE
VANN CIR

N 
BE
AL
 S T

W MARTIN LUTHERKING JR AVE

ARMS TRONG DR

E7THAVE

LA
ND
MA
RK
D
R

S ES TATEDR

CRUS ADER WAY

N P
EN
EL
OP
E S
T

W 7THAVE

AUS IE CIR

W 14THAVE

MONTROS E S T

MO
NT
RO
SE
 C
IR

MABEE DR

HILLTO
P
ST

HAS TI
NGS

RD

REUTER DR

E ES TATE DR

N W
AL
L S
T

PALMETTODR

CH
UR
CH
 ST

E20TH HALFAVE

CIRC
LEDR

N
EAS T

S T

W
EL
LS

S T

S A
XO
N 
DR

SH
INE

S T

E15TH AVE
W
O
O
D
ALL

S T

CRES TDR

E9THAVE

E14THAVE

FR
EN
CH
 S T

W 8TH AVE

HALLMARK CIR

LE
GA
CY
 LN

E26
THAVE

N B
LA
IR 
S T

E8THAVE

E21S TAVE

E12THAVE

RABERN CT

E GRIFFIN DR

W 10TH AVE

W 11TH AVE

PARKER
DR

W 15THAVE

E17THAVE

E11TH AVE

CA
PT
DR

E27
TH

AV
E

LIL

LY DR

JULIANNE RD

E28THAVE

E20TH AVE

DO
WN
IN
G 
S T

JA
M
ES

LN

E 25
THAVE

KIN
G 
S T

LEO
N
S T

HARDY
DR

M
O
OR
E
AV
E

W 13THAVE

E19TH AVE

GREENBRIAR S T

E10TH AVE

TUR
TL
EC
RE

EK DR

CO
M
M
ER
CE

S T

VANN

CIR

LO
NE
 O
AK
 D
R

E LAKE RD
LAKE RD

WA

CO
RD

E13THAVE

E22NDAVE

RIVER
OAKS

DR

N MAIN S T

E24THAVE

INDUS TRIALPARKRD

S PARTA RD

PA
RK

AVE

CITY OF BELTON
HERITAGE PARK
- ≈156.85 ACRES

0 1,000 2,000500 Feet

Propos e d ≈156.85 Acre  TIRZ Expansion
Prope rty Line s       
Cu rre nt TIRZ Bou ndary
City Lim its

µMap Date: 8/7/2018 Aerial Imagery Date: 2017

City of  Belton  Proposed TIRZ Expans ionCi ty of  Belton  Proposed TIRZ Expans ion

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\City Departm
ents\Planning Department\Sam's Maps\TIRZ-TARZ\TIRZ Expansion\2018\TIRZ Expansion2018.m

xd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for inform ational purposes and m ay not h ave been prepared for
or be suitable for leg al, eng ineering  or surveying  purposes. Th ey do not represent
an on-th e-g round survey and represent only th e approxim ate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is m ade by th e City of Belton reg arding  specific accuracy or com pleteness.



EXHIBIT “B” 
 

City of Belton, Texas 
TIRZ Boundary Expansion 

Old Standpipe Site 
August 2018 

 
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 
 

1. Beginning at the intersection of the west ROW line of IH14/S. Connell Street and extending 
northward approximately 1,020’ to its intersection with the north ROW line of West 
Avenue I and including the Connell Street ROW in its entirety between IH14 and W. 
Avenue I; thence 
 

2. Easterly along the north ROW line of W. Avenue I, a distance of approximately 1,600’ to 
its intersection with the west ROW line of S. Main Street (TX317); thence 
 

3. Southerly along the west ROW line of S. Main Street (TX317), a distance of approximately 
45’; thence 
 

4. Westerly along the south ROW line of W. Avenue I, a distance of approximately 1,550’ to 
its intersection with the east ROW of S. Connell Street, including the W. Avenue I ROW 
in its entirety between S. Main Street and S. Connell Street; thence 
 

5. S. Pearl Street, S. Davis Street, and S. Hughes Street ROW’s, between the north ROW line 
of W. Avenue I and the south ROW line of W. Avenue J, a distance of approximately 360’; 
thence 

 
6. Easterly along the north ROW line of W. Avenue J to the east ROW line of S. Pearl, a 

distance of approximately 1,190’, south along the S. Pearl ROW to the south ROW line of 
W. Avenue J, westward to the intersection with the east ROW line of S. Connell Street, 
and including the W. Avenue J ROW in its entirety between S. Connell Street and S. Pearl 
Street; thence 
 

7. Lot 2, Block 6, Belton Original Town, Property ID 20457, comprising the entire block 
bounded by W. Avenue I and W. Avenue J, and S. Davis Street and Hughes Street; thence 
 

8. Westward from the intersection of the east ROW line of Hughes Street and the north ROW 
of W. Avenue J to the east ROW line of S. Connell Street, a distance of approximately 
520’; thence 
 

9. Southerly along the east side of S. Connell Street ROW to its intersection with IH14, a 
distance of approximately 700’; thence 
 

10. Westerly along the north side of IH14 ROW to the west ROW line of S. Connell Street, a 
distance of approximately 90’ to the point of beginning in this TIRZ boundary expansion. 

 
Estimated Acreage: 7.86 acres 



§̈¦35

§̈¦35

§̈¦14

§̈¦14
£¤190

£¤190

£¤317

SA
UN
DE
RS
 S T W AVE H

EAVEH

EAVEI

EAVEJ

SU
RG
HN
OR
 S T

W AVEF

JA
CK
S O
N S
T

W US HWY190S ERVICERD

ON
 RA
MP

S  IH
 35 S
ERV
ICE 
RD

FLYOVER RAMP

EXIT RAMP

AC
CE
S S
 RD

S  P
EA
RL
 S T

W AVEI

CO
NN
EL
L
S T

W AVEJ

HU
GH
ES
 S T

S  D
AV
IS  
S T

S
IN
TE
RS
TA
TE
35

W 190HWY

S
M
AI
N
S T

CITY OF BELTON
S TANDPIPE -
≈ 7.86 ACRES

0 250 500125 Feet

Proposed 7.86 Acre TIRZ Expansion
Property Lines      
Current TIRZ Boundary
City Limits

µMap Date: 8/7/2018 Aerial Imagery Date: 2017

City of  Belton  Proposed TIRZ Expans ionCi ty of  Belton  Proposed TIRZ Expans ion

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\City Departm
ents\Planning Department\Sam's Maps\TIRZ-TARZ\TIRZ Expansion\2018\TIRZ Expansion2018.m

xd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for inform ational purposes and m ay not h ave been prepared for
or be suitable for leg al, eng ineering  or surveying  purposes. Th ey do not represent
an on-th e-g round survey and represent only th e approxim ate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is m ade by th e City of Belton reg arding  specific accuracy or com pleteness.



Sec. 311.007.  CHANGING BOUNDARIES OR TERM OF EXISTING 

ZONE.  (a)  Subject to the limitations provided by Section 

311.006, if applicable, the boundaries of an existing 

reinvestment zone may be reduced or enlarged by ordinance or 

resolution of the governing body of the municipality or by order 

or resolution of the governing body of the county that created 

the zone. 

(b)  The governing body of the municipality or county may 

enlarge an existing reinvestment zone to include an area 

described in a petition requesting that the area be included in 

the zone if the petition is submitted to the governing body of 

the municipality or county by the owners of property 

constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 

property in the area according to the most recent certified 

appraisal roll for the county in which the area is located.  The 

composition of the board of directors of the zone continues to 

be governed by Section 311.009(a) or (b), whichever applied to 

the zone immediately before the enlargement of the zone, except 

that the membership of the board must conform to the 

requirements of the applicable subsection of Section 311.009 as 

applied to the zone after its enlargement.  The provision of 

Section 311.006(b) relating to the amount of property used for 

residential purposes that may be included in the zone does not 

apply to the enlargement of a zone under this subsection. 

(c)  The governing body of the municipality or county that 

designated a reinvestment zone by ordinance or resolution or by 

order or resolution, respectively, may extend the term of all or 

a portion of the zone after notice and hearing in the manner 

provided for the designation of the zone.  A taxing unit other 

than the municipality or county that designated the zone is not 

required to participate in the zone or portion of the zone for 

the extended term unless the taxing unit enters into a written 

agreement to do so. 
 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TX&Value=311.006
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TX&Value=311.009
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TX&Value=311.009
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TX&Value=311.006












•
A.

B.

•

•



City Council Agenda Item 
August 14, 2018 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #7 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute the following contracts: 
 
A. A concrete contract for the annual construction materials for infrastructure projects for 

one year, and any change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount 
authorized under state law; and 

 
B. A concrete contract for repair of the Lake Road sidewalks for one year, and any change 

orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount authorized under state 
law. 

 
Originating Department 
 
Public Works – Angellia Points, P.E., Director of Public Works /City Engineer 
 
Background 
 
Annually, the City enters into a contract with a construction company or materials provider to 
have access to items such as hot mix asphaltic concrete (HMAC), construction of sidewalks, 
bedding materials, and crushed limestone road base. The materials are used for typical 
maintenance work, internal capital improvement projects, and other miscellaneous work that 
the City performs. In the past, Public Works has provided the excavation, preparation of 
right-of-way, preparation of subgrade, processing of limestone base, traffic control, and final 
site restoration.  
 
On May 9, 2017, contracts were awarded to the following firms, with two one-year 
extensions possible:  
 

• Concrete – Dixon Paving 
• HMAC – Oldcastle-Wheeler 
• Pipe Bedding – Lonestar Grading and Materials 
• Road Base - Lonestar Grading and Materials 

 
On May 22, 2018, the Lonestar Grading and Materials contracts were renewed for pipe 
bedding and road base. On June 26, 2017, the Oldcastle-Wheeler HMAC contract was 
renewed for another year. 
 
The contract for concrete needed to be reworked to include turn-key sidewalk and curb 
construction, as well as expanded to include the FM439 sidewalk repair. The concrete bid 
was developed to include two separate bid items: Bid A for miscellaneous concrete items 
and Bid B for the FM439/Lake Road sidewalks. Bid A includes all of the miscellaneous 
concrete infrastructure needs, such as replacement 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 14, 2018 

Page 2 of 3   
 

sidewalks, new curb and gutter, driveways, pedestrian ramps, etc. As done in previous 
years, materials/work are ordered on an as-needed basis by the Director of Public Works. 
Bid B includes replacing the settled sidewalk panels along FM439. Although the Public 
Works Department has planned to repair the sidewalk for a few years, the work has yet to 
be completed due to other priority projects and workload for an existing staff of seven 
workers. For both bids, the City reserves the right to order only what is needed at the sole 
discretion of the City. Due to this stipulation, the approved amounts do not represent the 
absolute cost of the contract, but are instead guaranteed unit prices from the contractor for 
the listed items. 
 
The concrete bid was advertised and bids were received on July 24, 2018. The bids  
received, listed lowest to highest, are as follows: 
 
Bid A – Misc. Concrete Items      
Dixon Paving, Inc., Belton    $481,420.00 
Lone Star Grading & Materials LLC, Salado $583,700.00 
Construction Services, Inc., Austin  $637,132.70 
Prota, Inc., Austin     $761,029.00 
 
Bid B – FM439 Sidewalks     
Lone Star Grading & Materials LLC, Salado $30,975.00 
Prota, Inc., Austin     $46,466.00 
Construction Services, Inc., Austin  $57,750.00 
Dixon Paving, Inc., Belton    $58,700.00 
 
For Bid A, the low bidder was Dixon Paving, Inc. of Belton. The City of Belton has worked 
with Dixon Paving for several years under the City’s annual infrastructure contract. Dixon 
Paving is aware that work must be completed according to the City of Belton’s requirements 
and within four (4) weeks from receipt of notice about the work. Dixon Paving did not 
acknowledge Addendum No. 1 in the bid submittal. However, Addendum No. 1 did not have 
any effect on the bid pricing or construction methods. In addition, the City has the right to 
waive irregularities, including the requirement to acknowledge Addendum No. 1.   
 
For Bid B, the low bidder was Lone Star Grading & Materials LLC of Salado. The City of 
Belton is familiar with Lone Star Grading & Materials’ work in the private sector, as well as a 
performing as a subcontractor on a few City of Belton projects. Staff believes Lone Star will 
be able to perform the sidewalks repairs successfully, including development and 
implementation of an acceptable traffic control plan for TxDOT approval. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Bid tabulations are attached for the contracts, and fiscal impact will vary from project to 
project. The funding sources will be operating budget, capital project funds, and bond funds 
as appropriate. 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 14, 2018 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Budgeted:   Yes    No   Capital Project Funds, TIRZ Funds, Etc. 
Recommendation 
 

A. Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for Bid A for miscellaneous 
concrete infrastructure with Dixon Paving, Inc. of Belton, and any change orders 
associated with the contract for one year, not to exceed the amount authorized under 
state law. 
 

B. Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for Bid B for Lake Road Sidewalk 
Repairs with Lone Star Grading & Materials LLC of Salado, and any change orders 
associated with the contract for one year, not to exceed the amount authorized under 
state law. 

 
Attachments 
Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulations 
 













Concrete Work - Dixon Paving



Bid A – Misc. Concrete Items 
Dixon Paving, Inc., Belton $481,420.00
Lone Star Grading & Materials LLC, Salado $583,700.00
Construction Services, Inc., Austin $637,132.70
Prota, Inc., Austin $761,029.00

Bid B – FM439 Sidewalks
Lone Star Grading & Materials LLC, Salado $30,975.00 – Funding is available!
Prota, Inc., Austin $46,466.00
Construction Services, Inc., Austin $57,750.00
Dixon Paving, Inc., Belton $58,700.00





Ad Valorem and Sales 
Tax Discussion

FY 2019 Proposed Budget



Overview
 Division of ad valorem and sales tax revenues
 History and purpose of dedicated ad valorem 

and sales taxes 
 Provide big picture view of proposed FY 2019 

budgeted ad valorem and sales tax revenues



General Fund Revenues

 63% of General Fund revenues come from ad valorem and sales taxes
 These revenue streams form two legs of the ‘three-legged stool’ that 

provide the funding for general City government operations



Ad Valorem Taxes

 A tax rate of $0.6598 will generate a total levy of $7,390,772
 At a collection rate of 97%, the levy generates $7,169,048 in budgeted 

ad valorem revenue, split across three funds



Ad Valorem Taxes – TIRZ 

 Ad valorem taxes on the incremental value of properties within the Tax 
Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) are directed into the TIRZ Fund

 The baseline values for the TIRZ were established December 14, 2004

Ad Valorem Breakdown



Ad Valorem Taxes – TIRZ 

 Incremental City Ad valorem taxes are combined with those of the 
County and constitute a majority of the funding for the TIRZ

 TIRZ funds are restricted in their use by state law, and the focus of the 
annual budget is on development and redevelopment projects that 
enhance the value of the TIRZ

TIRZ Budgeted Revenues



Ad Valorem Taxes – Debt Service

 The City’s top line tax rate is comprised of a maintenance and operations rate and debt service rate
 The individual rates determine the amount of ad valorem funding to the General Fund (M&O rate) 

and Debt Service Fund (debt service rate)
Rate Restrictions
 The debt service rate cannot exceed the rate needed to generate a levy sufficient to pay the legal 

obligations of the City
 The M&O rate cannot exceed 1.08 x the effective M&O rate

“Non-TIRZ” Ad Valorem Breakdown Debt Service Budgeted Revenues



Sales Tax

 The 8.25% sales tax rate is divided 6.25% to the State and 2.00% to local 
governments

 Bell County has adopted a 0.50% ‘sales tax for property tax reduction’
 The City of Belton has a 1.00% sales tax to fund general operations and 

a 0.50% sales tax to fund the Belton Economic Development Corporation

Sales Tax Rate City Sales Tax Rate



Sales Tax – BEDC

 The dedicated 0.50% economic development sales tax was adopted by 
the voters of the City in 1990 to fund the BEDC

 BEDC funds are restricted in their use by state law, and the focus of the 
annual budget is on the creation and retention of primary jobs

BEDC Budgeted RevenuesCity Sales Tax Revenue



Comments and Questions
Presentations to follow:

 FY 2019 Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Budget
 FY 2019 Belton Economic Development Corporation Budget
 FY 2019 General Fund Budget
 FY 2019 Debt Service Fund Budget
 FY 2019 Tax Rate Discussion



BEDC Budget

Fiscal Year 2019



FY 2018 Projection

Fund Balance represents current assets less current liabilities;
commonly referred to as working capital in the private sector

Beginning Fund Balance $903,967

Projected Revenues $1,836,399

Projected Expenditures ($2,239,680)

Net Impact of Projected Budget ($403,281)

Projected Ending Fund Balance 500,686$              

BEDC FY 2018



FY 2019 Proposed

BEDC FY 2019

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance $500,686

Projected Revenues 2,265,740$       

Proposed Expenditures ($2,260,139)

Net Impact of Proposed Budget $5,601

Projected Ending Fund Balance 506,287$              



Revenues

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2019
Description Actual Budget Projected Proposed Amount %

Sales Tax $1,638,491 $1,685,000 $1,766,275 $1,816,000 $131,000 7.77%
Rental Income $43,975 $43,200 $43,200 $43,200 $0 0.00%
Sale of Property $0 $0 $0 $392,040 $392,040 -
Contributions/Misc $240 $1,700 $8,000 $0 ($1,700) -100.00%
Interest Income $36,419 $40,000 $18,924 $14,500 ($25,500) -63.75%

Total Revenues $1,719,125 $1,769,900 $1,836,399 $2,265,740 $495,840 28.02%

Change from 2018 Budget



Expenditures
FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2019

Description Actual Budget Projected Proposed Amount %

Personnel $180,154 $192,817 $192,817 $200,013 $7,196 3.73%
Supplies $2,963 $3,800 $4,100 $4,300 $500 13.16%
Repairs & Maint $42,812 $41,150 $39,150 $39,150 ($2,000) -4.86%
Services $141,442 $222,384 $161,113 $206,676 ($15,708) -7.06%
Total O&M Expend $367,370 $460,151 $397,180 $450,139 ($10,012) -2.18%

Debt Service $90,527 $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital $175,310 $293,000 $53,000 $290,000 ($3,000) -1.02%
Incentive Transfer $95,000 $95,000 $95,000 $70,000 ($25,000) -26.32%
Infrastructure Transfer $190,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Projects Transfer $4,100,000 $1,694,500 $1,694,500 $1,450,000 ($244,500) -14.43%

Total Expenditures $5,018,208 $2,542,651 $2,239,680 $2,260,139 ($282,512) -11.11%

Change from 2018 Budget



Capital Projects Fund
FY 2017 – FY 2019: $7,244,500 in project funding

 $4,100,000 in FY 2017
 $1,694,500 in FY 2018
 $1,450,000 in FY 2019 (proposed)

Key Projects
 Rockwool site enhancements
 Avenue D extension
 East Street rehabilitation 
 IH-35 and IH-14 utility extensions
 Loop 121 local cost share



Incentives Fund
 6/30/18 projected cash balance: $1,787,400
 Total commitments outstanding: $2,082,000
 Cash less long term commitments is ($294,600)
 Balance to be funded through transfer and interest earnings
 FY 18 budgeted transfer from Operating Fund is $95,000



Cash Flow Projections and Notes
Anticipate a combined fund balance of $6,873,580 at 9/30/18

 $500,686 in the Operating Fund
 $1,679,503 in the Incentive Fund
 $4,693,391 in Capital Projects Fund

Anticipate a combined fund balance of $2,158,983 at 9/30/19
 $506,287 in the Operating Fund
 $1,652,696 in the Incentive Fund
 $0 in Capital Projects Fund



Tax Increment 
Reinvestment Zone

FY 2019 Proposed Budget



Summary of TIRZ Funds
Operating Fund

 Collects all ad valorem tax revenues
 Directly funds Façade Grants and Debt Service
 Transfers funds to General Fund, TIRZ Capital Projects, Drainage 

Fund
TIRZ Capital Projects Fund

 Funds eligible, multi-year capital projects approved by the Board
 Receives transfers in from the Operating Fund
 Transfers funds to the TIRZ Bond Fund or other capital project 

funds
TIRZ Bond Fund (Dissolving at the end of FY 2018)

 Receives funds from bond proceeds and transfers from the capital 
project funds of the TIRZ, Water and Sewer and Drainage, and from 
the Belton Economic Development Corporation 

 Funded the Sparta Road Project 



FY 2019 
TIRZ 

Operating 
Fund

Projected Beginning Fund Balance 144,391$       

Projected Revenues
City 877,625$     
County 560,254$     
Interest 10,500$       

Total Revenues 1,448,380$    

Proposed Expenditures:
Development

Retail Development Coordinator 57,053$       
Debt Service - Principal, Interest & Fees

Principal, Interest, and Fees 391,305$     
Downtown Revitalization:

Downtown Façade Grants 50,000$       
Other Public Improvements:

Park Lane 950,000$     

Total Expenditures (1,448,358)$  

Net Impact of Budget on Fund Balance 22$                 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 144,412$       

- TIRZ Fund -



Revenues

 $50,000

 $250,000

 $450,000

 $650,000

 $850,000

 $1,050,000

 $1,250,000

 $1,450,000

 $1,650,000

Fiscal Year

TIRZ Study

Actual Taxes

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2019
Account Name Actual Budget Projected Proposed Amount %

City TIRZ Taxes 728,569$    781,460$    806,822$    877,625$    96,165$        12.31%
County TIRZ Taxes 464,376$    498,865$    514,067$    560,254$    61,389$        12.31%
Bond Proceeds 20,000$      -$               
Interest Income 5,410$       5,000$        7,805$        10,500$      5,500$          110.00%

Total Revenues 1,218,354$ 1,285,325$  1,328,694$  1,448,380$  163,055$      12.69%

Change from 2018 Budget



Expenditures

Debt Service
27%

Grants
4%

Transfer to TIRZ 
Capital Projects 

Fund
64%

Transfer to 
General Fund 
(Retail Dev)

5%

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2019
Account Name Actual Budget Projected Proposed Amount %

Debt Service 354,227$    357,955$    357,955$    391,305$    33,350$        9.32%
Grants 40,000$      90,000$      57,422$      50,000$      (40,000)$       -44.44%
Transfer to TIRZ Capital Projects Fund 717,178$    907,805$    907,805$    950,000$    42,195$        4.65%
Transfer to Street Maintenance Fund 162,210$    -$               -$               -$               -$                 
Transfer to Drainage Projects Fund -$              -$               -$               -$               -$                 
Transfer to General Fund (Retail Dev) 77,270$      66,384$      38,162$      57,053$      (9,331)$         -14.06%

Total Expenditures 1,350,885$ 1,422,144$  1,361,344$  1,448,358$  26,214$        1.84%

Change from 2018 Budget



Façade Grants
Completed
 Bold Republic – 206 Penelope ($7,422)

Approved
 Boston – 100 South East ($20,000) 
 Gunter – 204 North Penelope ($20,000)
 Oak Fire Pizza – 107 North East ($10,000)

Pipeline
 112 East Central ($20,000) 
 108 West Central ($10,000)
 The Gin ($20,000)



Debt Service

2017 Refunding TOTALS
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

FY 2019 140,000$      8,123$          205,000$      36,782$        345,000$     44,905$    389,905$     
FY 2020 145,000$      6,443$          235,000$      30,472$        380,000$     36,915$    416,915$     
FY 2021 145,000$      4,485$          245,000$      23,239$        390,000$     27,724$    417,724$     
FY 2022 140,000$      2,310$          250,000$      15,698$        390,000$     18,008$    408,008$     
FY 2023 -$              -$              260,000$      8,002$          260,000$     8,002$      268,002$     

Totals 570,000$      21,360$        1,195,000$  114,193$      1,765,000$  135,553$  1,900,553$  

TIRZ Portion TIRZ Portion
2013 CO's



Retail Development
Judy Garrett
 Dual role as point of contact for retail 

development and Tourism Manager
 Expanded retail recruitment efforts
 Increased coordination with BEDC
 Concluded contract with The Retail Coach

2019 Focus
 Hotel site tours
 Increased Belton presence at retail conferences



Project Updates
Completed Key Infrastructure Projects
 Sparta Road
 South Main Street sidewalk and waterline

Completed Library Assessment
South Belton Hike and Bike Trail
 AFA expected to be executed in late summer
 TIRZ participation estimated at $358,114

BEDC funded projects within the TIRZ
 East Street rehabilitation 
 South IH-35 waterline



Southwest Traffic Circulation

Improve traffic circulation 
in southwest Belton
“Step One”

 Southwest Parkway 
connection 

 Design proposal solicited
 Expect design to be 

completed in Spring 2019



East 6th Ave Beautification 
Plan Enhancement for 6th Ave
Next Steps: 
 Secure PUE for electric lines
 Develop budget for relocation
 Gain understanding of UMHB gateway plans



Park Avenue Extension
North – South 
connection from 
Hilltop to 13th

Secondary entrance 
to the Park

Estimated Cost: 
$1,000,000



Questions



General Fund

FY 2019 Proposed Budget



FY 2018 Budget - Original
- General Fund -

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 5,108,100$       

Proposed Revenues 14,157,433$   
Proposed Expenditures (14,157,296)$ 

Net Impact of Amended Budget 137$                  

Proposed Ending Fund Balance 5,108,237$       

Less:  Minimum Balance (3 months O&M Budget) (3,381,192)$      

Proposed Fund Balance in Excess of Minimum 1,727,045$       



FY 2018 Budget - Amended
- General Fund -

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 5,108,100$       

Proposed Revenues 14,207,433$   
Proposed Expenditures (14,607,296)$ 

Net Impact of Amended Budget (399,863)$         

Proposed Ending Fund Balance 4,708,237$       

Less:  Minimum Balance (3 months O&M Budget) (3,381,192)$      

Proposed Fund Balance in Excess of Minimum 1,327,045$       



FY 2018 Projection
- General Fund -

Beginning Fund Balance 5,108,100$       

Projected Revenues 14,566,814$   
Projected Expenditures (14,566,272)$ 

Net Impact of Budget on Fund Balance 542$                  

Proposed Amendment

Net Impact of Amended Budget on Fund Balance 542$                  

Projected Ending Fund Balance 5,108,642$       



FY 2019 Budget - Proposed
- General Fund -

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 5,108,642$       

Proposed Revenues 14,495,675$   
Proposed Expenditures (14,495,649)$ 

Net Impact of Proposed Budget 26$                     

Proposed Ending Fund Balance 5,108,668$       

Less:  Minimum Balance (3 months O&M Budget) (3,417,051)$      

Proposed Fund Balance in Excess of Minimum 1,691,617$       



Revenues
FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2019

Description Actual O - Budget A - Budget Projected Proposed Amount %

Ad Valorem Taxes $4,816,717 $5,153,519 $5,153,519 $5,181,322 $5,504,872 $351,353 6.82%
Sales Tax $3,276,982 $3,370,000 $3,370,000 $3,532,551 $3,632,000 $262,000 7.77%
Franchise $1,164,335 $1,157,100 $1,157,100 $1,202,064 $1,202,000 $44,900 3.88%
Other Taxes $40,811 $38,500 $38,500 $40,000 $40,000 $1,500 3.90%
Permits & Licenses $331,412 $228,400 $228,400 $230,400 $230,400 $2,000 0.88%
Municipal Court $311,159 $349,200 $349,200 $275,845 $275,900 ($73,300) -20.99%
Refuse Collection $1,330,093 $1,359,000 $1,409,000 $1,415,000 $1,480,300 $121,300 8.61%
Ambulance $1,340,105 $1,250,000 $1,250,000 $1,350,000 $750,000 ($500,000) -40.00%
Harris Rental Income $42,475 $34,900 $34,900 $50,000 $50,000 $15,100 43.27%
Parks & Rec Income $33,528 $36,600 $36,600 $35,630 $35,600 ($1,000) -2.73%
Code Enforcement $26,893 $16,400 $16,400 $4,176 $4,200 ($12,200) -74.39%
Intergovernmental $354,587 $352,807 $352,807 $360,291 $354,603 $1,796 0.51%
Other Financing Sources $159,360 $130,000 $130,000 $200,500 $175,000 $45,000 34.62%
Contributions $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0 0.00%
Miscellaneous $44,000 $38,700 $38,700 $38,100 $39,900 $1,200 3.10%
Transfers $530,791 $575,307 $575,307 $547,085 $617,000 $41,693 7.25%
Interest Income $54,152 $65,000 $65,000 $101,850 $101,900 $36,900 56.77%

Total Revenues $13,859,399 $14,157,433 $14,207,433 $14,566,814 $14,495,675 $338,242 2.38%

Change from 2018 Budget



Revenues



General Fund Budget Initiatives
Capital Replacement Plan

 Successfully implemented (FD, HVAC, IT, PD, PW)
 IT plan proposed to expand in FY 2019 to bring in Network Infrastructure

Civil Service Pay Adjustments
 Three year, phased approach proposed in FY 2018 policy discussion
 5% adjustment adopted into FY 2018 budget

Preventative Street Maintenance Plan
 Three years completed
 Year four is under construction now
 Three year plan to double FY 2017 budgeted funding of $125,000

 Increased annual funding to $166,000 in FY 2018
 “One time” additional funding of $150,000 included in FY 2018
 FY 2019 proposed to increase annual funding to approximately $170,000

 Long term funding goal of $1-1.5 million



Capital Replacement Plan
IT plan proposed to expand in FY 2019 to bring in Network 
Infrastructure
Vehicles and Equipment Scheduled for Replacement

 Four PD Patrol cars (8-10 years old)
 FD F-150 (10 years old)
 Parks F-150 (19 years old)
 Parks Tractor (24 years old)
 Streets F-250 (19 years old)
 Streets Brush Chipper (34 years old)
 Streets Backhoe (19 years old)
 54 computers and tablets (3-7 years old)
 12 HVAC Units (14-26 years old) – replaced as-needed



Personnel Pressures
Personnel Requests (Not Addressed in FY 2019)

 Assistant City Clerk
 Court Clerk
 Police Department Staffing Plans
 Fire Department Staffing Plans
 Parks Maintenance Technician
 Recreation Coordinator 
 Planning assistance
 Civil Service compensation and non-civil service promotions

Benefit Costs
 Anticipate 12.5%+ increase in health insurance from 2018 rates
 Retirement strategy 

 ICMA (defined contribution) v. TMRS (hybrid/defined benefit)
 Additional discussion on strategy and funding this fall



Street Maintenance Fund
Previous plan year spending:

 Years 1&2: $1,427,072
 Year 3: $839,742
 Year 4: $665,147

FY 2019 (Year 5) Funding Breakdown:
 $225,000 anticipated to be remaining in the fund after 

Year 4 (FY 2018) plan
 $170,000 proposed to be included in the FY 2019 budget
 $150,000 provided through FY 2018 amendment
 Total FY 2019 Funding of approximately $545,000



Expenditures
FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2019

Description Actual O - Budget A - Budget Projected Proposed Amount %

Personnel $8,347,672 $9,102,181 $9,102,181 $9,102,181 $9,340,584 $238,403 2.62%
Supplies $501,881 $571,599 $569,183 $541,330 $532,039 ($39,560) -6.95%
Repairs & Maint $529,419 $497,189 $555,412 $524,249 $514,159 $16,970 3.06%
Services $2,551,025 $2,606,881 $2,637,911 $2,645,624 $2,779,196 $172,315 6.53%
Debt Service $63,827 $63,827 $63,827 $63,827 $75,274 $11,447 17.93%
Contingency $0 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $150,000 $50,000 50.00%
Transfers $1,665,581 $1,082,530 $1,432,530 $1,444,530 $981,444 ($101,086) -7.06%
Contributions $118,062 $123,089 $123,089 $121,368 $122,953 ($136) -0.11%
Capital $11,110 $0 $13,163 $13,163 $0 $0 0.00%
Strategic Plan $0 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $0 ($10,000) -100.00%

Total Expenditures $13,788,577 $14,157,296 $14,607,296 $14,566,272 $14,495,649 $338,353 2.32%

Change from 2018 Budget



Expenditures
FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2019

Description Actual O - Budget A - Budget Projected Proposed Amount %

City Council $73,246 $74,604 $74,604 $99,668 $74,563 ($41) -0.05%
Administration $491,080 $488,852 $488,852 $462,065 $519,926 $31,074 6.36%
Finance $305,113 $330,201 $330,201 $325,956 $344,407 $14,206 4.30%
Human Resources $176,091 $183,417 $183,417 $182,769 $191,190 $7,773 4.24%
Muni Court $185,586 $178,718 $178,718 $181,067 $192,790 $14,072 7.87%
Police $3,962,297 $4,110,438 $4,110,438 $4,090,592 $4,189,378 $78,940 1.92%
Fire $2,962,426 $3,079,029 $3,129,029 $3,103,564 $3,164,974 $85,945 2.75%
Info Technology $171,377 $175,438 $175,438 $168,674 $235,168 $59,730 34.05%
Streets $1,406,514 $1,269,307 $1,419,307 $1,434,844 $1,159,158 ($110,149) -7.76%
Parks & Recreation $1,126,235 $1,151,194 $1,151,194 $1,149,334 $1,214,073 $62,879 5.46%
Planning $385,773 $392,450 $392,450 $382,771 $399,376 $6,926 1.76%
Library $331,852 $345,444 $345,444 $344,505 $360,539 $15,095 4.37%
Other $471,916 $528,089 $728,089 $738,368 $447,953 ($80,136) -11.01%
Refuse $1,142,144 $1,173,171 $1,223,171 $1,227,370 $1,301,076 $127,905 10.46%
Maintenance $456,521 $531,156 $531,156 $528,937 $553,055 $21,899 4.12%
Engineering $140,405 $145,788 $145,788 $145,788 $148,023 $2,235 1.53%

Total Expenditures $13,788,577 $14,157,296 $14,607,296 $14,566,272 $14,495,649 $338,353 2.32%

Change from 2018 Budget



Contributions

Organization 2019 Contribution 2018 Contribution
AUSA Scholarship $1,000 $1,000
Bell County Health District $47,177 $47,177
Hill Country Transit District $31,912 $31,912
HOT Defense Alliance $5,630 $5,630
BISD Crossing Guard Program $24,734 $23,149
Senior Citizens Center $10,000 $10,000
Downtown Belton Merchant Association $2,500 $2,500
Total Contributions $122,953 $121,368



Summary
Budget as presented has no change to the current tax rate
Key Initiatives

 Capital Replacement Plan Implemented
 Street maintenance funding

 $170,000 included in FY 2019 budget
 Year 5 plan funding: $545,000

Future Budget Challenges
 Street Maintenance Plan
 Personnel Pressures

 Staffing 
 Benefits



Debt Service Fund

FY 2019 Proposed Budget



FY 2018 Projection

 Projected Revenues include the $200,000 transfer from General Fund
 Without the transfer, current year fund balance utilized would be $67,177
 FY 2018 initial budgeted use of fund balance was $82,845

- Debt Service Fund -

Beginning Fund Balance 169,940$      

Projected Revenues 1,199,717$                            
Projected Expenditures (1,066,894)$                           

Net Impact of Projected Budget 132,823$      

Projected Ending Fund Balance 302,763$      



FY 2019 Proposed

- Debt Service Fund -

Projected Beginning Fund Balance 302,763$       

Proposed Revenues 932,417$                                
Proposed Expenditures (1,176,417)$                           

Net Impact of Proposed Budget (244,000)$      

Proposed Ending Fund Balance 58,763$         



Revenues

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2019
Description Actual Budget Projected Proposed Amount %

Ad Valorem Taxes $1,074,343 $978,708 $988,535 $922,417 ($56,291) -5.75%
Bond Proceeds $30,000 $0 $1,182 $0 $0
Transfer from General Fund $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0
Interest Income $5,780 $6,000 $10,000 $10,000 $4,000 66.67%

Total Revenues $1,110,123 $984,708 $1,199,717 $932,417 ($52,291) -5.31%

Change from 2018 Budget



Expenditures
FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 FY 2019

Description Actual Budget Projected Proposed Amount %

Bond Principal $646,824 $705,538 $705,538 $759,250 $53,712 7.61%
Bond Interest $422,252 $356,595 $356,595 $409,467 $52,872 14.83%
Bond Paying Agent Fees $732 $720 $720 $1,150 $430 59.72%
Arbitrage Rebate Calc Fees $5,255 $4,700 $4,700 $6,550 $1,850 39.36%
Bond Issue Costs $30,805 $0 ($659) $0 $0

Total Expenditures $1,105,868 $1,067,553 $1,066,894 $1,176,417 $108,864 10.20%

Change from 2018 Budget



Debt Service Tax Rate

Debt Service Rate is projected to remain consistent at the $0.0948 level moving forward.



Debt Service Fund Projections

5% projected 
annual certified 
tax roll growth

$562,914

$204,072

$145,309



Strategy Discussion
Strategic Initiatives

 Provide increased autonomy for the City in the direction of its tax rate in the 
future

 Fund the land acquisition to expand Heritage Park without raising topline tax 
rate

Funding
 Projected plan cost is $621,677 over five year period starting in FY 2020
 Projected cost net of $58,763 in Debt Service fund balance is $562,914
 Funding sources will be identified annually, targeting the following sources

 Fund balance of the Debt Service Fund
 General Fund net revenues in excess of budget
 Unspent contingent appropriations in the General Fund budget
 Other identified cost savings in the General Fund budget
 Fund balance of the General Fund



GO Debt Summary
Maturity ---Interest Rates--- Original Outstanding

Issue Date Low High Issue 10/01/18

2003 GO's 08/01/2023 4.15% 4.15% 2,480,000$     910,000$                

2005 GO's 08/01/2025 3.54% 3.54% 4,500,000$     1,615,000$             

2017 Refunding - GO Portion 08/01/2027 1.05% 2.10% 1,565,000$     1,430,000$             

2008 CO's - GO Portion 08/01/2028 4.19% 4.19% 1,485,000$     887,288$                

2013 CO's - GO Portion 08/01/2033 3.078% 3.078% 5,125,000$     4,975,000$             

2015 CO's - GO Portion 08/01/2035 2.00% 3.00% 1,070,000$     935,000$                

2018 CO's - GO 08/01/2030 3.00% 5.00% 2,185,000$     2,185,000$             

Total General Obligation Debt Outstanding 12,937,288$           



Debt Service Schedule

Fiscal
Principal Interest Total Year

759,250$                409,467$               1,168,717$             FY 2019
792,963$                382,447$               1,175,410$             FY 2020
836,675$                356,337$               1,193,012$             FY 2021
866,675$                328,749$               1,195,424$             FY 2022
910,387$                299,979$               1,210,366$             FY 2023
949,100$                269,667$               1,218,767$             FY 2024
977,812$                239,765$               1,217,577$             FY 2025

1,011,525$             208,617$               1,220,142$             FY 2026
1,040,238$             179,491$               1,219,729$             FY 2027
1,027,663$             147,327$               1,174,990$             FY 2028

950,000$                114,865$               1,064,865$             FY 2029
975,000$                86,002$                 1,061,002$             FY 2030
555,000$                56,382$                 611,382$                FY 2031
570,000$                39,349$                 609,349$                FY 2032
585,000$                21,855$                 606,855$                FY 2033

65,000$                  3,900$                   68,900$                  FY 2034
65,000$                  1,950$                   66,950$                  FY 2035

12,937,288$           3,146,148$            16,083,436$           Totals

Annual Totals



Ad Valorem Tax Rate

FY 2019 Proposed Budget



Certified Tax Roll

Comparison of Tax Rolls FY 2018 FY 2019 Change

Total Market Value $1,477,406,418 $1,551,925,886 $74,519,468
Less State Mandated Reductions
10% Residential Cap ($2,370,364) ($2,388,004) ($17,640)
Ag Value Loss ($13,040,601) ($14,127,158) ($1,086,557)
Totally Exempt Property ($355,498,164) ($366,775,657) ($11,277,493)
Veteran's Partial ($2,967,885) ($3,131,909) ($164,024)
Veteran's 100% HS ($20,122,983) ($27,367,384) ($7,244,401)
Local Options:
Abatements ($7,707,328) ($4,927,359) $2,779,969
Charitable Organizations ($3,871,133) ($444,647) $3,426,486
Over 65 ($11,049,104) ($11,290,269) ($241,165)
Disabled ($1,145,662) ($1,135,581) $10,081
Pollution Control ($2,385,901) ($184,575) $2,201,326
Taxable Value $1,057,247,293 $1,120,153,343 $62,906,050



Historical Values
Fiscal Tax Appraised % Taxable % Tax %
Year Year Tax Rate Value Change Value Change Levy Collections % TIRZ Value Change

2006 2005 $0.6750 $681,292,912 11.30% $502,019,398 14.18% $3,388,414 3,300,813$       97.41% 12,618,404$     
2007 2006 $0.6550 $750,068,830 10.09% $569,777,215 13.50% $3,730,314 3,647,857$       97.79% 26,686,436$     111.49%
2008 2007 $0.6550 $821,610,708 9.54% $626,671,977 9.99% $4,104,701 4,023,508$       98.02% 34,863,608$     30.64%
2009 2008 $0.6550 $885,807,551 7.81% $694,953,743 10.90% $4,551,947 4,455,311$       97.88% 46,662,236$     33.84%
2010 2009 $0.6550 $920,295,495 3.89% $719,733,740 3.57% $4,746,286 4,629,436$       97.54% 51,798,069$     11.01%
2011 2010 $0.6550 $1,003,315,239 9.02% $747,923,436 3.92% $4,898,899 4,755,548$       97.07% 54,484,927$     5.19%
2012 2011 $0.6540 $1,057,699,156 5.42% $767,959,433 2.68% $5,022,455 4,916,417$       97.89% 64,001,446$     17.47%
2013 2012 $0.6598 $1,113,098,626 5.24% $792,650,868 3.22% $5,229,910 5,124,859$       97.99% 75,024,448$     17.22%
2014 2013 $0.6598 $1,175,639,416 5.62% $835,898,027 5.46% $5,515,255 5,426,284$       98.39% 83,081,610$     10.74%
2015 2014 $0.6598 $1,270,087,875 8.03% $894,861,696 7.05% $5,904,297 5,780,783$       97.91% 89,666,510$     7.93%
2016 2015 $0.6598 $1,326,200,720 4.42% $949,857,395 6.15% $6,267,159 6,213,465$       99.14% 102,898,754$   14.76%
2017 2016 $0.6598 $1,395,219,172 5.20% $997,593,915 5.03% $6,582,125 6,493,885$       98.66% 110,743,113$   7.62%
2018 2017 $0.6598 $1,464,365,817 4.96% $1,057,247,293 5.98% $6,975,718 6,830,742$       97.92% 122,102,068$   10.26%
2019 2018 $0.6598 $1,537,798,728 5.01% $1,120,153,343 5.95% $7,390,772 TBD 97.00% 137,127,669$   12.31%

Annualized 6.46% 6.37% 97.68% 20.14%

Highest tax rate in the last 25 years was $0.8239 in 1995
Last time tax rate was above $0.70 was 2005 at $0.7050
Annualized Non-TIRZ growth has been 5.51% since creation of TIRZ
FY 2019 Non-TIRZ growth is 5.12%



Historical Values

Since FY 2006
 6.46% annual Appraised Value growth
 6.37% annual Taxable Value growth
 20.14% annual TIRZ Value growth
 5.51% annual non-TIRZ Value growth

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

$1,800

M
ill

io
ns

Fiscal Year

Appraised Value

Taxable  Value

TIRZ Value



Definitions – Effective Tax Rate
 The effective tax rate enables the public to evaluate the 

relationship between taxes for the prior year and for the 
current year, based on a tax rate that would produce the 
same amount of taxes if applied to the same properties 
taxed in both years.

 Appraisal increases, tax rate decrease and vice-versa
 Adjusts for TIRZ and new improvements
 Aggregate calculation
 No public hearing

 FY 2019 Effective Rate = $0.6516 per $100 



Definitions – Rollback Tax Rate
The rollback tax rate calculation splits the tax rate into two 
separate components

 Maintenance and operations rate
 Debt service rate

Rollback rate = effective M&O rate x 1.08 plus debt service rate
Adoption of a tax rate above the rollback rate could trigger an 
election if petitioned by 10% of registered voters

FY 2019 Tax Rates (per $100)
 Effective M&O: $0.5347
 Rollback M&O: $0.5774 (Effective M&O x 1.08)
 Debt Service: $0.0948 ($0.1196 without use of fund balance)
 Rollback Tax Rate: $.6722 (Rollback M&O plus Debt 

Service)



Tax Rate Options
Budget FY 2019 FY 2018
Comparison of Tax Rates $0.6598 $0.6516 $0.6598 $0.6722

Current Rate Effective Rate Current Rate Rollback Rate

Taxable Value $1,057,247,293 $1,120,153,343 $1,120,153,343 $1,120,153,343

O&M Tax Rate $0.5545 $0.5568 $0.5650 $0.5774
Debt Service Tax Rate $0.1053 $0.0948 $0.0948 $0.0948
Total Tax Rate $0.6598 $0.6516 $0.6598 $0.6722
Change from current rate ($0.0082) $0.0000 $0.0124

Total Tax Levy $6,975,718 $7,298,919 $7,390,772 $7,529,671
Estimated Collections - 97% $6,766,446 $7,079,952 $7,169,049 $7,303,781

Current Ad Valorem $5,686,563 $6,049,903 $6,139,000 $6,273,732
Payment to TIRZ ($656,744) ($740,621) ($751,528) ($768,022)
Net General Fund Current AV Taxes $5,029,819 $5,309,282 $5,387,472 $5,505,711

Each $1M of Tax Value@97% $6,400 $6,321 $6,400 $6,520
Penny Tax @ 97% Collection $102,553 $108,655 $108,655 $108,655
Penny Tax @ 97% - net of TIRZ $90,709 $95,353 $95,353 $95,353

Value of Average Home in Belton $157,844 $164,329 $164,329 $164,329
Tax on Average Home $1,041 $1,071 $1,084 $1,105
Change from current year $30 $43 $64

FY 2019



Agenda Items
Council Actions

 Conduct vote by the City Council to place a proposal to 
adopt a tax rate for Fiscal Year 2019 tax rate on the 
Tuesday, September 18, 2018, agenda.

 Call for two public hearings on a proposed tax rate for 
Fiscal Year 2019 to be held on Tuesday, August 28, 
2018, and Tuesday, September 11, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. at 
the Harris Community Center, 401 N. Alexander Street.


	081418 - Workshop Agenda
	WS#2 - WM Franchise Info
	081418 - Regular Meeting Agenda
	City Manager's Memo
	#3 - Minutes - 072418
	#4 - Staff Report - Lease Agreement
	#4 - Attachments
	#5 - Staff Report - KTMPO Projects
	#5 - Attachments
	#6 - Staff Report - TIRZ Boundary
	#6 - Attachments
	#7 - Staff Report - Concrete Contracts
	#7 - Attachments
	#8 - Ad Valorem and Sales Tax
	#9 - BEDC Budget
	#10 - TIRZ Budget
	#11 - General Fund Budget
	#12 - Debt Service Budget
	#13 - Ad Valorem Tax Rate



